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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET
(“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only
after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and
other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is
a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Prosten
Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM
of the Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge
and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AREH

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Zhigang (Chairman and executive director,
appointed on 25 June 2015)
Mr. Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony (appointed on 26 February, 2016)
Mr. Han Jun
Ms. Ding Pingying (appointed on 25 June, 2015 and
resigned on 26 February, 2016)
Mr. Yip Heon Keung (redesignated to Non-executive Director

with effect from 17 July, 2015)
Mr. Yip Heon Ping (resigned on 17 July, 2015)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Weixi (appointed on 25 June, 2015)

Mr. Yip Heon Keung (redesignated from Executive Director
with effect from 17 July, 2015)

Mr. Song Xuxi (appointed on 1 June, 2016)

Ms. Li Luyi (resigned on 17 July, 2015)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong (appointed on 25 June, 2015)

Mr. Xu Xiaoping (appointed on 25 June, 2015)

Mr. Poon Yan Wai (appointed on 8 October, 2015)

Ms. Wong Chi Yan (appointed on 25 June, 2015 and resigned on
8 October 2015)

Mr. Tam Chun Wan (resigned on 17 July 2015)

Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine (resigned on 17 July 2015)

Ms. Lai May Lun (resigned on 17 July 2015)
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AIRMAN’'S STATEMENT

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company, | am pleased to present the annual report of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the financial year ended 31 March 2016.

Wireless value - added services

The past financial year continued to be very challenging and volatile for the wireless value-added business. The
telecommunication industry has been going through significant structural changes and couple with the impact of the
rapid advancement of technologies changed the overall industry landscape. Our traditional wireless value-added
service was still adversely affected by the unstable market policies from telecommunication operators in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Group will continue to seek growth opportunities both within our existing business and in new business areas
where we can leverage our competitive advantages to broaden and improve our profitability in the future. With the
recent deployment of 4G technology, the telecommunication operators believe that the future key revenue driver is
dataflow. We are working on a number of solutions aiming to help telecommunication operators to effectively manage its
customers vast dataflow.

Lending Business

During the year, the Group had commenced in lending business in Hong Kong to diversity the Group’s income source
by acquiring a group of companies with a valid lending licence in Hong Kong. Nevertheless, the lending business is still
at the development phase and contributed only a small portion to the Group’s results during the current year, the Group
would continue to monitor the market and environment for further expansion opportunities.

Jewelry trading and retailing business

During the year, the Group had also expanded into the trading and retailing business by acquiring a group of jewelry
companies which were mainly based in Hong Kong and Shenzhen, PRC. Such acquisition is to broaden income source
and so as to compensate the effect of reduction of income attributable to the wireless value-added services.

We would continue to adopt a cautions approach to balance between our business development process and our
financial liquidity position.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express our sincere appreciation of the continuing
supports of our shareholders and business partners and also of the contribution and dedication of our management
and dedicated sta
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN N D

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

During the year, apart from revenue from the wireless value-added
service (“WVAS”) for music as the Group’s main source of income.
The Group diversified its revenue base to jewelry trading and retailing
and lending business (“New Business”). The income from the Group’s
technical supporting services to a major telecommunication operator
in the PRC, however, showed a downward trend due to the expiry of
contracts. The introduction of the New Business has compensated
the reduction from WVAS revenue.

As a result, the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2016
amounted to approximately HK$10,050,000, representing a increase
of approximately 3% from approximately HK$9,763,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2015.

Cost of sales and gross profit margin

As a result of entering into the jewelry trading and retailing business,
cost of sales of the Group increase from approximately HK$3,213,000
for the year ended 31 March 2015 to approximately HK$4,641,000
for the year ended 31 March 2016, representing an increase of
approximately 44%. As the Group has revenue generated from New
Business which has a lower gross profit margin, the overall gross
profit margin deceased from approximately 67% to 54% in current
year.

Other income and gains

Other income and gains during the year amounted to approximately
HK$604,000, which was decreased by approximately HK$1,202,000
as compared with that of 2015 (2015: HK$1,806,000). The decrease
was mainly attributable to the reduction in gain from disposal of items
of property, plant and equipment.

Selling expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2016, as a result of expansion of New
Business, the Group’s selling expenses experienced an increase
from approximately HK$2,989,000 for the year ended 31 March 2015
to approximately HK$3,635,000 for the year ended 31 March 2016,
representing a rise of approximately 22%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEEWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses mastered a decrease of approximately
HK$8,346,000 from approximately HK$31,414,000 for the year ended
31 March 2015 to approximately HK$23,068,000 for the year ended
31 March 2016. The decrease in such expenses was due to the
reduction on the administrative expenses such as directors’
remuneration research and development cost.

Other expenses

Other expenses, which mainly represented expenses for staff
development and other non-operating expenses, decreased from
approximately HK$2,179,000 in 2015 to approximately HK$60,000
in 2016 which was mainly due to the decrease in non-operating staff
costs during the year.

Net gain on revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets

During the year, the Group had invested in 6% of its Shareholdings in
Hong Kong Net TV Limited at cost of HK$15,000,000. The fair value of
these available-for-sale financial assets amounted to HK$21,760,000.
As a result, the Group had a net gain of HK$6,760,000 in the
available-for-sale financial assets equity reserves (2015: nil).

Net loss on de-consolidation of subsidiaries

As the result of the De-Consolidation, further details of which are
set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statement, the Group
incurred an one-off non-recurring loss of HK$10,555,000 (2015: nil).

Result for the year

The Group’s loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
was approximately HK$31,359,000 in current year, representing an
increase in loss of approximately HK$1,652,000 from that in 2015
(2015: HK$29,707,000).

Total equity

As a results of placement activities, as at 31 March 2016, the Group
has a total equity amounted to approximately HK$70,954,000 (2015:
total deficit in assets of approximately HK$10,867,000) and net
current assets amount to approximately HK$42,935,000 (2015: net
current liabilities of approximately HK$18,058,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group adopts a prudent cash and financial management policy.
In order to achieve better cost control and minimise the cost of funds,
the Group’s treasury activities are centralised and cash is generally
placed in deposits with banks.

As at 31 March 2016, total cash and cash equivalents of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$28,761,000 (2015: HK$1,778,000).

Treasury policies and foreign currency
exchange exposure

As most of the Group’s trading transactions, monetary assets and
liabilities are denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar, the
impact of foreign exchange exposure to the Group was minimal and
there was no significant adverse effect on normal operations.

Cash is generally deposited at banks in the PRC and Hong Kong
and denominated mostly in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar. As at 31
March 2016, no related hedges were made by the Group (2015: nil).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had no material contingent liabilities
(2015: nil).

Significant investments, acquisitions or
disposals

The Group had acquired 6% shares in Hong Kong Net TV Limited,
expanded into the business in jewelry trading and retailing, and
lending during the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: nil).

Details of these investments and acquisition are set out in notes 19
and 35 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Capital structure and use of proceeds

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM on 28 March 2000.
During the year under review, a total of 3,137,500 share options were
exercised to subscribe for shares of the Company.

Further, pursuant to placing agreements dated 31 July 2015 and
19 February 2016, totalling of 296,118,000, new ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each of the Company were issued under the general
mandate at the price of HK$0.43 per share as to 136,270,000 shares
and HK$0.31 per share as to 159,848,000, respectively for cash to
placing agents (the “Placings”).

The total of 296,118,000 new shares issued under the Placings,
represents approximately 37% of the then Company’s issued
share capital before the Placings (799,242,500 ordinary shares)
and approximately 27% of its enlarged issued share capital of the
Company after the Placings (1,095,360,500 ordinary shares). The net
proceeds from the Placings were approximately HK$105,718,000.
The Group had used such net proceeds mainly for general working
capital of the Group and investment. The Placings were completed on
21 August 2015 and 10 March 2016, respectively.

Details about the use of proceeds up to 31 March 2016 out of the
placements were summarized as follows:
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Events after the reporting period

(a)

(b)

(c)

The Subscription

On 31 May 2016, the Company and the subscriber entered into
the subscription agreement pursuant to which the subscriber
agreed to subscribe for, and the Company agreed to issue, the
Convertible Note in the aggregate principal amount of HK$35
million. The subscription is conditional upon satisfaction of the
conditions precedent.

The Acquisition

On 31 May 2016, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, the vendor and the guarantor entered into the
acquisition agreement, pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to purchase and the vendor conditionally
agreed to sell the sale shares of a group of target companies, at
the aggregate consideration of HK$14,378,000.

Proposed change of company name

The Board of the Company proposes to change the existing
English name of the Company from “PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY
HOLDINGS LIMITED” to “PROSTEN HEALTH HOLDINGS
LIMITED” and to adopt the dual foreign name in Chinese “ &
IR AR QA to replace the existing Chinese name
“RERHTIERR AR A R which was adopted for identification
purposes only subject to certain conditions, including the
passing of a special resolution by the Shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting to approve the proposed change
of company name. The stock short name of the Company will
be changed consequently.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Events after the reporting period (continued)

(d)

(e)

De-consolidated subsidiaries

On 24 June 2016, the Company announced that despite
repeated verbal and written requests (including legal letters),
the Directors has been unable to access the complete sets of
book and records together with the supporting documents of
De-Consolidated Subsidiaries for the period from 1 January
2016 to 31 March 2016. This was mainly due to the lack of
cooperation by the management of the De-Consolidated
Subsidiaries.

On 24 June 2016, the Directors considered that the Group
was unable to govern the De-Consolidated Subsidiaries, and
the control over the De-Consolidated Subsidiaries was lost.
Therefore, from 1 January 2016 onwards, the Group had de-
consolidated the De-Consolidated Subsidiaries from its financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2016. Details
of the above will be included in the Company’s annual results
announcement for the financial year ended 31 March 2016.

The Directors has been taking all reasonable steps and has
been using its best endeavours to protect interest of the Group
and try to resolve the above matters.

Provision of loan

On 22 April 2016, SZ Enterprise Union Finance Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company, and independent third party entered
in a loan agreement, which SZ Enterprise Union Finance
Limited has agreed to lend to the independent third party a
term loan in the principal amount of HK$6,000,000. Term loan
is six months period from the drawdown date with 10% interest
rate per annum. For details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement date 22 April 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEEWR DM

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had a total of 95 employees (2015:
59). Total staff costs for the year ended 31 March 2016 decreased to
approximately HK$15,127,000 million (2015: HK$17,913,000) mainly
due to strict control over staff cost.

The Group’s remuneration policy is basically determined by the
performance of individual employees and Directors and the market
condition. In addition to salaries and discretionary bonuses, employee
benefits included medical schemes, pension contributions, share
option schemes and staff training.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

During the financial year ended 31 March 2016, as a result of the
expiry of WVAS contracts, revenue from WVAS decreased in the year.

During the year, the Group had acquired companies in lending, as
well as in jewelry trading and retailing business in order to broaden
and diversify the income source. Such diversification had minimised
and compensated the effect of reduction in WVAS revenue. The
Group had made effort to reduce the burden on the liquidity position
due to expansion of business development by raising additional fund
activities on placement of new shares. These placements activities
had strengthen the Group’s liquidity position in fulfilling its business
development commitment.

Details of placement activities and such acquisition are set out in
notes 31 and 35 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Looking ahead, there are still great challenges for the Group. While
carrying out initiatives already under way in its current strategic
plans, the Group will also critically review the future opportunities
in its traditional businesses with a target to reallocate the Group’s
resources for a more fruitful manner. In the coming future, the Group
will focus its work on strengthen its marketing and channel efforts,
increasing user base and improving the quality of its products.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGHNEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Zhigang (“Mr. Xu”), aged 45, appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on 25 June 2015 and appointed as
Chairman of the Board on 17 July 2015. Mr. Xu holds a master’s
degree in business management from Southwest Jiaotong University
in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xu acted as a vice
president of Mega Medical Technology Limited (formerly known
as “Wing Tai Investment Holdings Limited) (stock code: 876), a
company listed on the Exchange, and he was an executive director
and later re-designated as a non-executive director of Aurum Pacific
(China) Group Limited (stock code: 8148), a company listed on
the Exchange. Mr. Xu has extensive experience in areas such as
corporate management, business financing, corporate investment
and asset acquisition.

Mr. Yeung Yiu Bong Anthony (“Mr. Yeung”), aged 52, appointed
as an executive Director of the Company on 26 February 2016. Mr.
Yeung graduated from University of Westminster, London with a
bachelor of arts degree in Architecture. Mr. Yeung is a fellow of the
Hong Kong Securities and Investors Institute, a fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors, a member of the Hong Kong Management
Association, and a member of the Chartered Insurance Institute. Mr.
Yeung is a seasoned professional in the securities industry especially
in the areas of management and compliance of securities brokerage
firm as well as corporate finance. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yeung
was a founder, executive director and responsible officer of Hani
Securities (H.K.) Limited, an intermediary licensed by the Securities
and Futures Commission of Hong Kong under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) to carry
out types 1, 4 and 6 regulated activities. Mr. Yeung was also an
executive director of Asia Resources Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Exchange (stock code: 899) prior to joining the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Han Jun (“Mr. Han”) aged 45, was redesignated from a non-
executive Director to an executive Director on 5 February 2015. Mr.
Han graduated from the College of Computer Science of Beijing
University of Technology, majoring in computer software. Since
2004, Mr. Han has held the position of General Manager of Beijing
Flash Unite Network Technology Co., Ltd, which is a leading mobile
phone content and service provider in the mainland China. Prior to
that, Mr. Han worked in TOM.COM LIMITED as a vice-president from
2000 to 2004, responsible for the company website and wireless
business. Before 2000, Mr. Han worked in China Potevio Co., Ltd,
responsible for the development of software for operation service
of telecommunication main network. Mr. Han has very extensive
experience in management and operation of telecommunication
value-added business.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Weixi (“Mr. Chen”), aged 29, appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 25 June 2015. Mr. Chen graduated from
the department of economics from Southern Methodist University in
the United States. Mr. Chen is currently the general manager of #3I|T
2K &R EER AT (Shenzhen Jin Mao Hui Investment Limited*) and
FYNENBAIRIEERE S EIBERAF (Shenzhen Qian Hai Hong Ding
Investment Funds Management Limited*) and the chief investment
officer of RIITALREEEIEBRAHF (Shenzhen Hong Ding Assets
Management Limited*). Mr. Chen has engaged in various areas in
finance and real estate, managed different investment projects and
conducted in-depth studies in the field of crowd-sourcing and online
to offline aspects.

* The English translation of the name is for identification purpose only
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Directors and Senior Management
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Yip Heon Keung (“Mr. Yip”), aged 46, joined the Group in
October 1996, was redesignated from an executive Director to a
non-executive Director on 17 July 2015. Mr. Yip also holds certain
directorships in other members of the Group. Mr. Yip is a graduate of
Program for Management Development from Harvard University and
holds a bachelor degree in electrical engineering from the University
Wisconsin-Madison in the United States of America (“USA”). Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Yip worked in a software-consulting firm as a
consultant in the USA.

Mr. Song Xuxi (“Mr. Song”), aged 33, appointed non-executive
Director of the Company on 1 June 2016. Mr. Song holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Business Administration from Beijing Economic and
Technological Training Institute (1t & 4 & £ fif # & 2 f2) and a
Master’s Degree in Business Administration from Ursuline College
in the USA. Mr. Song also completed a Business Administration and
Innovation Leadership Seminar (T & & 12 & &l #1 8 E H & ) in
the Research Institute of Tsinghua University in Shenzhen (#3152
KEHFFTFT). Mr. Song has over 8 years of experience in corporate

administration and strategic planning.
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Directors and Senior Management
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong (“Mr. Lam”), aged 62, appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 25 June
2015. Mr. Lam is a Justice of the Peace, a holder of a Bronze Bauhinia
Star and a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam holds a
bachelor of laws degree from the University of Hong Kong and has
been a practicing solicitor for over 32 years. Mr. Lam is currently a
member of the Buildings Ordinance Appeal Tribunal Panel, a member
of the Panel of Adjudicators, Obscene Articles Tribunal, an ex-
officio member of Heung Yee Kuk New Territories, a civil celebrant
of marriages, a China-appointed Attesting Officer and a fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Lam is non-executive
director of Mega Medical Technology Limited (stock code: 876),
and an independent non-executive director of Southwest Securities
International Securities Limited (stock code: 812) and Sparkle Roll
Group Limited (stock code: 970), all of which are companies with
shares listed on the Exchange. Mr. Lam was an independent non-
executive director of Same Time Holdings Limited (now known
as “GCL New Energy Holdings Limited”) (stock code: 451) and
he resigned in May 2014. Mr. Lam was also appointed as a non-
executive director of Sky Forever Supply Chain Management Group
Limited (Stock Code: 8047) until he resigned on 28 July 2015, both of
which are companies with shares listed on the Exchange.

Mr. Xu Xiaoping, aged 51, appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 25 June 2015. Mr. Xu Xiaoping
is an experienced management personnel. Mr. Xu started his career
in 1989 and has served in % % & 5 B R 2 & (Shen Hua Trading
Limited*), Xx& & AR 27l (Tian Qi Electrons Limited*), which were
companies carrying on the business of online banking services in the
PRC. Mr. Xu has also acted as the chairman of the board of directors
of FINTEIYAR AR AT (Shenzhen Ben Xiang Logistics Limited*),
a company carrying on the business of air cargo services in the PRC.
Mr. Xu is currently the investor of = E & FSH &A% (Jia Xing You
Ben Investment Partnership*), which is engaged in the venture capital
business.

* The English translation of the name is for identification purpose only
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Directors and Senior Management

ESENSREER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Poon Yan Wai (“Mr. Poon”), aged 46, appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 8 October
2015. Mr. Poon holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Accountancy and
a Master’s Degree in Corporate Finance from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Mr. Poon is a fellow member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 20 years
of experience in the auditing and accounting field. Mr. Poon is the
financial controller, company secretary and authorised representative
of a Hong Kong listed company. Mr. Poon is currently an independent
non-executive director of the Emperor Capital Group Limited, which is
listed on the Main Board of the Exchange (stock code: 717).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

All the executive Directors are responsible for the various aspects of
the business and operations of the Group and are regarded as the
members of the senior management team of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETHE

The directors (“Directors”) of Prosten Technology Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) are pleased to present their report and the audited
financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
18 to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by principal activities
for the year ended 31 March 2016 is set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March 2016 and the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 64 to 172.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year under review is set
out in the Management Discussion and Analysis section of this annual
report on page 16.
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Report of the Directors

EFEWE

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years.

MBERREE

AR BB A AN R TIE 2 4 A
ERAEHEMT -

Results HiE
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t—HLEFE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZE-RF | ZET—01F —T-MF —T—=F —T-_F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FET FAET
Revenue & 10,050 9,763 24,209 57,161 67,244
Loss before tax FRA AT EE (31,351) (28,307) (41,607) (29,444) (23,849)
Income tax (expense)/  Fr{8%t (FAx) /&
credit (8) (1,400) (6) 67 (1,626)
Loss for the year AARERFAEA
attributable to JEIhFEANEE
equity holders
of the Company (31,359) (29,707) (41,613) (29,377) (25,475)
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(continued)

HHRERRE @

Assets and Liabilities BEEREE
As at 31 March
R=BR=+—H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-XRF —hF —E —T-—=F —ZT——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAT FAT FHIT FHTT
Property, plant and YE - BB KRB
equipment 2,067 2,351 3,373 3,907 4,043
Investment property WEYEE — 4,367 4,767 4,490 3,444
Deposits HEq 46 141 371 - 717
Available-for-sale AEHERE
investments 22,179 832 831 831 826
Goodwill EES 3,908 = - == b
Deferred tax asset RIETIEEE — — 1,394 1,396 1,303
Current assets MBNVEE 75,019 9,884 25,852 76,742 91,705
Current liabilities mENBE (32,084) (27,942) (25,273) (37,392) (23,780)
Non-current liability MBI AR (181) (500) (499) (499) (493)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/ (AafF) FE 79,054 (10,867) 10,816 49,475 77,765
Share capital [ 109,536 79,610 75,635 75,635 75,635
Reserves ftE (38,582) (90,477) (64,819) (26,160) 2,130
Total (deficit in (BEBH)
assets)/equity S 1BTE 79,054 (10,867) 10,816 49,475 77,765

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and the
investment property of the Group during the year are set out in notes
16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year are set out in notes 31 and 32 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles of Association”) or the laws of
the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”).

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

On 21 August 2015, an aggregate of 136,270,000 placing shares
were successfully placed under general mandate to not fewer than
six placees, which are independent third parties of the Group, at
the placing price of HK$0.43 per placing share. The 136,270,000
placing shares represents approximately 17.05% of existing issued
share capital of the Company on 31 July 2015, the date the placing
agreement was entered into, and approximately 14.57% of the issued
share capital of the Company as enlarged by the placing shares.

On 10 March 2016, an aggregate of 159,848,000 placing shares
were successfully placed under general mandate to not fewer than
six placees, which are independent third parties of the Group, at the
placing price of HK$0.31 per placing share. The 159,848,000 placing
shares represents approximately 17.09% of existing issued share
capital of the Company on 19 February 2016, the date the placing
agreement was entered into, and approximately 14.59% of the issued
share capital of the Company as enlarged by the placing shares.

During the year, the Company has issued and allotted 3,137,500 new
shares at par value of HK$0.1 per share, as a result of the exercise of
share options to the share option holders of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 March 2016.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of
the Group during the year are set out in note 34 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2016, the Company had no reserves available
for distribution as calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law (2001 Revision) of the Cayman Islands. Under the laws of the
Cayman lIslands, the share premium account is distributable to
the Shareholders provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. The share premium account may also be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 99% (2015: 100%) of the
Group'’s total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer
included therein accounted for approximately 39% (2015: 98%) of the
Group’s total sales.

During the year under review, supplies from the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately. 20% (2015: nil) of the Group’s
total purchases and purchases from the Group’s largest supplier
included therein accounted for approximately 17.3% of the Group’s
total purchases.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the Company
or any of their associates or any Shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers during the year.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND
SERVICES AND ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group recognises the importance of environmental sustainability
against modern ecological challenges. Therefore, the Group
committed to the long-term sustainability of its businesses and
the communities with which it engages. We pursue this business
approach by managing our business prudently and executing
management decisions with due care and attention. The Group
is committed to acting in an environmentally responsible manner.
Recycling and use of ecofriendly stationery, plus a series of measures
to save paper and energy, resulted in more efficient use of resources,
as well as reduction of waste.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Continuous dialogue is maintained with stakeholders that include
customers, employees, regulators and the public. The Company
seeks to balance the views and interests of these various stakeholders
through constructive conversations with a view to charting a course
for the long-term prosperity of the Company and the communities we
touch.

Employees

Hard-working and dedicated employees are the backbone of a
company. The Company treasures its loyal and industrious staff
members. In addition, it adopts non-discriminatory hiring and
employment practices and strives to provide a safe and healthy

workplace.
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ESERE

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (continued)

Government/Community

We recognise the importance of contributing within the local
community and we encourage our people to develop close links with
charities, schools and other institutions, both locally and nationally,
to help to build more economically sustainable local environments.
Strenuous efforts are exerted to ensure compliance with the laws and
regulations of the jurisdictions in which the Company operates.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company who held office during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Xu Zhigang (appointed on 25 June, 2015)

Mr. Han Jun
Mr. Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony (appointed on 26 February, 2016)

Ms. Ding Pingying (appointed on 25 June, 2015 and resigned on
26 February, 2016)

Mr. Yip Heon Keung (redesignated to Non-executive Directors
with effect from 17 July, 2015)
Mr. Yip Heon Ping (resigned on 17 July, 2015)
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chen Weixi (appointed on 25 June, 2015)

Mr. Yip Heon Keung (redesignated from Executive Director
with effect from 17 July, 2015)
Mr. Song Xuxi (appointed on 1 June, 2016)

Ms. Li Luyi (resigned on 17 July, 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong (appointed on 25 June, 2015)

Mr. Xu Xiaoping (appointed on 25 June, 2015)

Mr. Poon Yan Wai (appointed on 8 October, 2015)

Ms. Wong Chi Yan (appointed on 25 June, 2015 and
resigned 8 October, 2015)

Mr. Tam Chun Wan (resigned on 17 July, 2015)

Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine (resigned on 17 July, 2015)

Ms. Lai May Lun (resigned on 17 July, 2015)

In accordance with article 108 of the Articles of Association,
Mr. Han Jun, Mr. Yip Heon Keung and Mr. Xu Zhigang will retire by
rotation and, being eligible to offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”).

Pursuant to article 112 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Poon Yan
Wai, Mr. Yeung Yiu Bong Anthony and Mr. Song Xuxi will hold office
until the next AGM and, being eligible, to offer themselves for re-

election at the AGM.
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ESERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS’ CONFIRMATIONS OF
INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of its independent non-executive Directors to
be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Xu Zhigang, an executive Director, entered into a Director’s service
contract with the Company for a term of two years commencing from
25 June, 2015 to 24 June, 2017, subject to retirement by rotation and
reelection at the general meeting in accordance with the Articles of
Association.

Mr. Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony, an executive Director, entered into
a Director’s service contract with the Company commencing from
26 February, 2016 and expiring on termination agreed by either
party, subject to termination by either party giving not less than three
months’ notice in writing to the other party, subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the general meeting in accordance with the
Articles of Association.

Mr. Han Jun, an executive director, entered into a Director’s service
contract with the Company for a term of one year, commencing from
25 June, 2015 to 24 June 2016, subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the general meeting in accordance with the Articles of
Association.

Mr. Yip Heon Keung, redesignated from an executive Director to a
non-executive Director in 17 July, 2015, was appointed by a letter of
appointment for a term of one year commencing from 17 July 2015 to
16 July 2016, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
general meeting in accordance with the Articles of Association.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

(continued)

Mr. Chen Weixi, a non-executive Director, was appointed by a letter of
appointment for a term of one year commencing from 25 June 2015
to 24 June 2017, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the general meeting in accordance with the Articles of Association.

Mr. Song Xuxi, a non-executive director, enacted into a Director’s
service contract with the Company for a term of one year,
commencing from 1 June 2016 to 31 May 2017, subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the general meeting in accordance with
the Articles of Association.

The term of appointment of each of the independent non-executive

Directors under their respective letter of appointment made with the

Company is set out below and is subject to retirement by rotation and

re-election at the general meeting in accordance with the Articles of

Association:

Name Term

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong Two years commencing from
25 June 2015

Two years commencing from
25 June 2015

One year commencing from
8 October 2015

Mr. Xu Xiaoping

Mr. Poon Yan Wai

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Board are authorised by the Shareholders in general meeting to
fix the Directors’ remuneration. Other emoluments are determined
by the Board with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance, the results of the Group as well as the prevailing market
conditions.
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Report of the Directors

ESERE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group are set out in
notes 12 and 38 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

The Directors confirmed that during the year under review, the
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

None of the Directors had a material beneficial interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopts and administers a share option scheme
which is currently in force and effect for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. The Company’s original share
option scheme was approved by the Shareholders on 7 March 2000
(the “2000 Scheme”), and was terminated and replaced by a share
option scheme approved by the Shareholders on 9 April 2002 (the
“2002 Scheme”). The 2002 Scheme was terminated and replaced
by a new share option scheme approved by the Shareholders on 5
August 2011 (the “New Scheme”). The options granted under the
2000 Scheme, which were not exercised or terminated or expired
previously, became expired on 21 August 2011. Further details of the
2002 Scheme and the New Scheme are disclosed in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The following tables disclose movements in the Company’s share

options outstanding during the year:

B ESTE w)

TRIMEAREE AL T AT ERAE S 2
i

2002 Scheme —EREF5E
Number of share options***
BhRERR
At At Dateof  Exercise period of Exercise price of
Name or category 1 April Transferred Exercised Lapsed 31 March  share options share options share options
of participant 2015 during during during 2016 granted" granted granted**
$8E RoE-1E the period the period theperiod ~ RZF-AE ERE RitkRe RitkRe
ERIER BA-H HnEs B BR%x¥  =R=t-8 RtAA Pl ZiRE"
HKS per share
A7 (%K)
Director
£
NA N/A — — = N/A
TR NER TR
Other employees
of the Group
558
RS
In aggregate 200,000 — (200,000) — - 3 Apri 2008 3 April 2008 to 0410
ait “TI\E 2 April 2018
MA=H “TENF
MA=HZ
2§
mAZA
Inaggregate 200,000 = (200,000) = = 3 June 2008 3 June 2008 to 0417
fit “ERNE 2 June 2018
~A=H “TRNE
NA=RZE
E)\E
~AZH
400,000 - (400,000) - -

RERRZERBR AR
—E-XRFEER
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

B ESTE w)

New Scheme et El
Number of share options***
REEE
At At Dateof  Exercise period of Exercise price of
Name or category 1 April Transferred Exercised Lapsed 31 March  share options share options share options
of participant 2015 during during during 2016 granted" granted granted*
g8 RZE-1f the period the period theperiod ~ WZZ-AE ERE REgRE RibERE
ERAER mA-A s B BR&% =R=t-H RiAH ZATRER ZATRE"
HKS per share
A7 (5R)
Directors
ES
Mr. Yip Heon Keung 1,400,000 — (700,000) - 700,000 5 December 2013 5 December 2013 to 0.165
Emigng “T-ZF 4 December 2023
ATk “T-ZF
+-RRRZ
“E-cF
TZARA
#Mr. Yip Heon Ping 1,400,000 (700,000) (700,000) — — 5 December 2013 5 December 2013 to 0.165
ERTEE 5= 4 Deoember 2023
gkl %=
t-AEAZ
“E--E
+-AmA
2,800,000 (700,000) (1,400,000) — 700,000
Other employees
of the Group
428
AtES
In aggregate 50,000 — (37,500) (12,500) — 27 March 2013 27 March 2013 to 0.162
At 3=k 26 March 2023
=h=t+H “F-=F
ZRA=TtRZE
“%-=F
=R=trA
In aggregate 2,600,000 700,000 (1,300,000) — 2,000,000 5December 2013 5 December 2013 to 0.165
EH) Z5-=F  4December 2023
+-R%A —5-cE
T-ARAZ
“E- =k
+ZABA
5,450,000 — (2,737,500 (12,500) 2,700,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

New Scheme (continued)

*

The time of acceptance of the share options was within 21 days from
the options offer date. The share options granted are subject to certain
vesting period and vary for each category of participant as specified
under the respective share option schemes.

*k

The exercise price of the share options is subject to some adjustments
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company'’s share capital.

There were no share options cancelled during the period.

u Mr. Yip Heon Ping has ceased to be a Director of the Company since
17 July 2015 but he is still entitled to his share options to subscribe for
700,000 shares of the Company in his capacity as an employee of the
Group.

As at 31 March, 2016, the Company had outstanding options to
subscribe for up to 2,700,000 shares under the New Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which
were notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were,
pursuant to the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors adopted by the Company, notified to the Company and the
Exchange, were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (%)
(continued)
Long positions in the ordinary shares of the RAEAREBEBRZEE
Company
Percentage of the
Company’s issued
share capital
Note (3)
Capacity and 2w N
nature of interest Number of 2EITRAK
Name of Director Notes SR ordinary shares Bkt
EENE Liks3 EEHE ZERHA F3E(3)
Mr. Yip Heon Keung (1) Personal Interest 6,300,000 0.58%
HmagksE BARER
Mr. Chen Weixi (2) Interest of a controlled corporation 294,276,619 26.87%
PRIZERSE 4 —EX ARz s
Notes: BisE -

(1)
Company.

Mr. Yip Heon Keung is personally interested in 6,300,000 shares of the

294,276,619 shares of the Company are held by Dynamic Peak and its

entire issued share capital is held as to 80% by Mr. Chen Weixi and as
to the remaining 20% by Mr. Xu Zhigang, the chairman of the Company.
By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chen Weixi is deemed to be interested in
294,276,619 shares of the Company held by Dynamic Peak.

Based on 1,095,360,500 shares of the Company in issue as at 31
March, 2016.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March, 2016, none of the Directors

and chief executive of the Company had an interest or short position

in the ordinary shares or underlying shares of the Company or any

of its associated corporations that was notified to the Company and

the Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or

was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or

as otherwise notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to
Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Schemes”

and “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions

in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, at no time during the year

were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares

in or debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors or

their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights

exercised by them; or nor was the Company or any of its subsidiaries

a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such

rights in any other body corporate.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March, 2016, shareholders (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the

shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be

disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3

of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required

to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as

follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares or

underlying shares of the Company

EEBEROTES 2ER
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T
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Percentage of the
Company’s issued

Number of share capital

Capacity and  ordinary shares or Note (4)

nature of interest  underlying shares ERNE|

Name of shareholder Notes SHR ZERS B ETRA

RERER {iEs ERMtE HERGHE Bt

ML (4)

Dynamic Peak Limited (1) Beneficially owned 294,276,619 26.87%
s

Right Advance Management Limited (2) Beneficially owned 111,000,000 10.13%
EnlER

Ms. Wang Li Mei (2) Interest of 111,000,000 10.13%
EEAVE Y qun a controlled corporation
—RAIRESI AR

Mr. Wang Leilei (2) Interest of 111,000,000 10.13%
FESEEAE a controlled corporation
—RIRIESI AR 2w
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares or
underlying shares of the Company (continued)

Notes:

(1)  Dynamic Peak is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
and its entire issued share capital is held as to 80% by Mr. Chen Weixi
and as to the remaining 20% by Mr. Xu Zhigang. Both of them are the
Directors.

(2)  Right Advance Management Limited (“Right Advance”) is a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and its entire issued share
capital is registered in the name of Ms. Wang Li Mei, and such shares
are ultimately owned by Mr. Wang Leilei. Ms. Wang Li Mei is the sole
director of Right Advance.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, the Company has
not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or the controlling Shareholders of the Company
or their respective associates (as defined under the GEM Listing
Rules) have any interests in a business which competes or may
compete with the business of the Group, or has any other conflict of
interest with the Group during the year.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is formulated
by the remuneration committee of the Company (“Remuneration
Committee”) on the basis of their performance, qualifications and
competence. As incentives for their contributions to the Group,
the employees of the Group and all the Directors (including the
independent non-executive Directors and non-executive Directors)
may also be granted share options by the Company from time to time
pursuant to the share option scheme.

The emoluments of the Directors are either determined by the
Remuneration Committee or recommended to the Board, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market remuneration packages for executive and non-
executive directors of listed issuers in Hong Kong.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”) on
7 March 2000 and has formulated and from time to time amended its
written terms of reference in accordance with the provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”).

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include review and
supervision of the Group’s financial reporting system and risk
management and internal control procedures, review of the Group’s
financial information and review of the Group’s relationship with its
auditors.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Poon Yan Wai (Chairman of the Audit Committee),
Mr. Xu Xiaoping, Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong, and one non-executive
Director, namely Mr. Chen Weixi.

The Group’s audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2016 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee, who is of the
opinion that such statements comply with the applicable accounting
standards, the GEM Listing Rules and legal requirements, and that
adequate disclosures have been made.
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Report of the Directors
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Directors considered that the Company has complied with all the
code provisions set out in the CG Code as contained in Appendix
15 to the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year under review. Save
for the deviation disclosed for i) the roles of the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer under the CG Code provision A.2.1. ii) all non-
executive director should attend general meetings under the CG
Code provision A.6.7, and iii) management should provide sufficient
information and monthly updates to the board under CG code
provision C.1.1 and C.1.2.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the GEM Listing Rules based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors.

AUDITORS

The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited (“HLB”) whose term of office will expire upon the
forthcoming AGM. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming
AGM to re-appoint HLB as auditors of the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Xu Zhigang
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 June 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance with a view to assuring the conduct of
management of the Company as well as protecting the interests of all
Shareholders. The good corporate governance principles adopted by
the Company emphasise a quality board for leading and controlling
of the Company, effective internal controls, transparency and
accountability to all Shareholders.

The Company’s code of corporate governance practices was
adopted with reference to the CG Code and Corporate Governance
Report (“CG Report”) as contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions set out in
the CG Code throughout the year under review, save for the deviation
disclosed below of CG Code provisions A.2.1, A.6.7, C.1.1 and C.1.2.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules. In response to specific enquiry made by
the Company, each of the Directors gave confirmation that he/she
complied with the required standard of dealings and the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors throughout
the year ended 31 March 2016.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

During the year under review, Mr. Xu Zhigang was appointed as an
executive director on 25 June, 2015. Mr. Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony
was appointed as an executive director on 26 February, 2016.
Mr. Yip Heon Keung was redesignated from an executive director to
a non-executive director on 17 July, 2015. Ms. Ding Pingying was
appointed as an executive director on 25 June, 2015 and resigned
on 26 February, 2016. Mr. Yip Heon Ping resigned as an executive
director on 17 July, 2015.

Mr. Chen Weixi was appointed as a non-executive director on 25
June, 2015. Mr. Song Xuxi was appointed as a non-executive director
on 1June, 2016. Ms. Li Luyi was resigned as a non-executive director
on 17 July, 2015.

In addition, Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong and Mr. Xu Xiaoping were
appointed as independent non-executive directors on 25 June, 2015.
Mr. Poon Yan Wai was appointed as independent non-executive
director on 8 October, 2015, and Ms. Wong Chi Yan was appointed as
an independent non-executive director on 25 June 2015 and resigned
on 8 October, 2015.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises three
executive Directors, three non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. All Directors gave sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2016. Each executive Director has sufficient experience to hold
the position so as to carry out his/her duties effectively and efficiently.
In full compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules,
the Company had in place three independent non-executive Directors
and at least one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise. They
provided the Company with diversified industry expertise, advised
the management on strategic development and assumed that the
Board maintains high standard of compliance with financial and
other mandatory reporting requirements as well as provide adequate
checks and balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders and
the Company as a whole.
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Composition (continued)
The Board as at 31 March 2016 comprised:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Zhigang (Chairman)
(appointed on 25 June, 2015)

Mr. Han Jun

Mr. Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony
(appointed on 26 February, 2016)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Weixi
(appointed on 25 June, 2015)
Mr. Yip Heon Keung
(redesignated from Executive Director on 17 July, 2015)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Yan Wai

(appointed on 8 October, 2015)
Mr. Xu Xiaoping

(appointed on 25 June, 2015)
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong

(appointed on 25 June, 2015)

The names, biographical details of the Directors and the relationships
among them are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management”
section of this annual report.

An updated list of the Directors identifying their roles and functions
from time to time is posted on the website of the Exchange and the
Company’s website from time to time.

Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

Under the CG Code provision A.2.1, the roles of the chairman and
chief executive officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and the chief executive officer should be
clearly established and set out in writing.
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Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
(continued)

During the year under review, the Company has not appointed Chief
Executive Officer. The Chairman, Mr. Xu Zhigang, was responsible
for ensuring that the Board functions effectively and smoothly. In
doing so, the Chairman ensured that good corporate governance
practices were adhered to and proper procedures were established
and followed, and that all Directors were properly briefed and
received all relevant information prior to each Board meeting. The
Chairman was also responsible for overseeing the implementation
of corporate strategies of the Group. The Board considers that the
current arrangement is adequate in view of the size and complexity
of the Group’s operations. The Board will, nonetheless, review the
business growth of the Group and locate suitable candidate to fill
the vacancy of the chief executive officer when considered essential
and will continue setting out a clear division of responsibilities at the
board level and the day-to-day management team to ensure a proper
balance of power and authority within the Company.

Board Meetings

The Board meets in person or through electronic means of
communication at least four times every year. Notice of at least 14
days for all Board meetings were given to all Directors, who were all
given an opportunity to include matters in the agenda for discussion.
The company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”)
assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda for each meeting,
and ensures that all applicable rules and regulations regarding the
meetings are observed. The finalised agenda and accompanying
Board papers are then sent to all Directors prior to each meeting.
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Board Meetings (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the individual attendance record
of each Director is as follows:
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Attendance
Directors Bz HERY
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Xu Zhigang (Chairman) ®ER (L) 21/21
(appointed on 25 June, 2015) (R=E-RAF A-THBEEZMT)
Mr. Han Jun BELE 17/28
Mr. Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony BRBEE 1
(appointed on 26 February, 2016) (RZE—RF-A-+/ BEZT)
Ms. Ding Pingying (appointed on 25 June, 2015 THEgt: (R=F-nFAA-1+AHA 14/19
and resigned on 26 February 2016) BEZERR-_Z—~F-A-+/HET)
Mr. Yip Heon Ping (resigned on 17 Junly, 2015) EmFaE (RS- hFtA+tAFHE) 57
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Chen Weixi (appointed on 25 June, 2015) BERLE (R=—Z—RF A-THAEZT) 7/21
Mr. Yip Heon Keung (redesignated from an Em@iE (R=T—14F 20/28
executive Director with effect from 17 July, 2015) tATERRATESHE)
Mr. Song Xuxi (appointed on 1 June, 2016) REEEE (R-T—FA—BEZME) N/ATE
Ms. Li Luyi (resigned on 17 July, 2015) FR—LL (RZ—1FtA+tHER) 0/7
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong (appointed on 25 June, 2015) WEELE (RZE-—RE A +HBEZA) 17/21
Mr. Xu Xiaoping (appointed on 25 June, 2015) BIEEE (RZE—RF A A-+RHBEZE) 18/21
Mr. Poon Yan Wai (appointed on 8 October, 2015) ECEEE (RZZ—AFTA/\BEZT) 1012
Ms. Wong Chi Yan (appointed on 25 June, 2015 BTART (RZZE-hF A THREZA 5/9
and resigned on 8 October 2015) ER=Z—-RFt+ANRRE)
Mr. Tam Chun Wan (resigned on 17 July, 2015) ERRAE (RZT-RFLATHEEHE) 47
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine (resigned on 17 July, 2015) HARTE (R=F—hFtA+LHREHE) 47
Ms. Lai May Lun (resigned on 17 July, 2015) Bxtait (R=Z-hEtATHARE) 47

The Board held four regular meetings for the year ended 31 March
2016. During regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discussed
and formulated the overall strategies of the Company, monitored
financial performances and discussed the annual and interim results,
set annual budgets, as well as discussed and decided on other
significant matters.
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Board Meetings (continued)

Apart from the regular Board meetings of the year, the Board met
on other occasions when a board-level decision on a particular
matter was required. The Directors would receive the agenda and
documents to be tabled for consideration in advance of each Board
meeting.

The Company Secretary recorded the proceedings of each Board
meeting in details by keeping detailed minutes, including all decisions
made by the Board together with concerns raised and dissenting
views expressed (if any). Draft Board minutes were circulated to all
Directors for comments and approval as soon as practicable after
the meeting. All minutes are open for inspection by the Directors at
any reasonable time on their request. All Directors have access to
relevant and timely information at all times as the Chairman ensures
that management will supply the Board and its committees with all
relevant information in a timely manner.

During the Year, the Company provides regular updates on the
business performance of the Group to the Directors, so as to ensure
that they had appropriate understanding of the Group’s business and
of their duties and responsibilities under the GEM Listing Rules and
the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements.

GC Code provision C.1.1 provides management should provide
sufficient explanation and information to the board to enable it to
make an informed assessment of financial and other information
put before it for approval. CG Code provision C.1.2 provides that
management should provide all members of the board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
issuer’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail to
enable the board as a whole and each director to discharge their
duties under rule 5.01 and Chapter 17. The Board has been unable
to access the complete sets of book and records together with the
supporting documents of the De-Consolidated Subsidiaries for the
period from 1 January 2016 to 31 March 2016 due to the lack of
cooperation by the management of the De-Consolidated Subsidiaries.
Following the De-Consolidation, the Company can continue to provide
the complete set of monthly update to the Board.
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Delegation by the Board

The Company has set out the respective functions and responsibilities
which can be reserved to the Board and delegated to management.
The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to executive
Directors and senior management while reserving certain key matters
for its approval. The Board is responsible for the approval and
monitoring of the Company’s overall strategies and policies, approval
of business plans; evaluating the performance of the Company and
overseeing its management. It is also responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses by directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs.

Decisions of the Board are communicated to the management
through executive Directors who have attended at Board meetings.

Directors’ Work Commitments Outside the
Group

Directors are required to disclose in a timely manner to the Company
Secretary for any change, the number and nature of offices held in
public companies or organisations and other significant commitments,
and the identity of such public companies or organisations. Such
information is disclosed in the “Directors and Senior Management”
section of this annual report.

Directors’ Training

The Company provides newly appointed Directors with briefings
on the businesses of the Group and training materials on corporate
governance, directors’ duties and responsibilities and other matters
under the GEM Listing Rules and other relevant rules and regulations.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, which has come
into effect from 1 April 2012, all Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant. During the year under
review, all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending in-house briefing, studying materials on
the topics related to corporate governance and regulations and/
or attending or participating in industry-specific seminars and
conferences and provided a record of training to the Company.
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Directors’ Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to cover
the Directors’ risk exposure arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage is reviewed annually.

Term of Appointment and Re-election

Details of the terms of appointment of the Directors are disclosed
in the section “Directors’ Service Contracts” of the Report of the
Directors in this annual report. All Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the general meeting in accordance with
the Articles of Association.

Every newly appointed Director is provided with a package of
orientation materials detailing the duties and responsibilities of
Directors under the GEM Listing Rules, the Articles of Association,
related ordinances and relevant regulatory requirements of Hong
Kong.

Every Director is aware that, before accepting appointment as a
Director, he/she must be able to give sufficient time and attention to
the affairs of the Company.

Under the CG Code provision A.4.2, all directors appointed to fill
a casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at
the first general meeting after their appointment and every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not three (3) or a multiple of three (3), then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation, provided that every Director (including those appointed for
a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at
the meeting but shall not be taken into account in determining the
Directors or the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation at
such meeting.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board’s
process and communications among Board members and with the
Shareholders and the management, and advising the Board and its
committees on all corporate governance matters. She reports to the
Chairman of the Board and/or the Chief Executive Officer and her
selection, appointment or dismissal shall be a Board decision.

The Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary to ensure that Board procedures and all applicable laws,
rules and regulations are followed.

Ms. Lo Oi Ling resigned from the office of the Company Secretary
with effect from 15 October 2015. Ms. Wu Weilan (“Ms. Wu”) was
appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company from an
external secretarial services provider with effect from 15 October
2015 to fill the vacancy. Mr. Xu Zhigang, who is the Chairman of
the Board, is the primary point of contact at the Company with the
Company Secretary. In accordance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM
Listing Rules, Ms. Wu has taken no less than 15 hours of the relevant
professional training during the year under review.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
All Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are posted on the website of the Exchange and the
Company’s website.

The majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee are independent non-executive Directors;
which all members of the Audit Committee are independent non-
executive Directors and the list of the chairman and members of each
Board committee is set out below.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resource to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee

In accordance with the CG Code, the Company established the
Remuneration Committee on 17 June 2005 with written terms of
reference. The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Xu Xiaoping (Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong and one executive
Director, Mr. Xu Zhigang.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior management
and reviewing the specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors and senior management by reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the year
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under review. The individual attendance record of each Remuneraton ¥ MZE €SN ESBLESHE 2 LHN
Committee member is as follows: ™
Attendance
Members RE HEIRE
Mr. Xu Xiaoping (appointed as chairman TNEEE (RZE—RAF AT EREZAEREE) 2/2
on 17 July 2015)
Mr. Xu Zhigang (appointed as remember BrERLEE (RZZE—AFEATLREZAARZE) 2/2
on 17 July 2015)
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong (appointed as member  #MBIELE (R—ZE—AF+tA++LHEZTAZE) 2/2
On 17 July 2015)
Mr. Tam Chun Wan (resigned as director BIRESLE (RZE—hAF A +HAHTES) 1/1
on 17 July 2015)
Mr. Yip Heon Keung (ceased to be member HER@itE (RZE—AFEtA+ERAREEZE) 1/1
on 17 July 2015)
Ms. Lai May Lun (resigned as director BEmutT (RZZE—hF LA +LARIES) 1/1

on 17 July 2015)
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee

In accordance with the CG Code, the Company established the
Nomination Committee on 29 March 2012 with written terms of
reference. The Nomination Committee comprises one executive
Director, namely Mr. Xu Zhigang (Chairman of the Nomination
Committee) and two independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Xu
Xiaoping and Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
formulating nomination policy and making recommendations to
the Board on nomination and appointment of Directors and Board
succession, developing selection procedures for nomination
candidates, reviewing the size, structure and composition of the
Board, as well as assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year
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under review. The individual attendance record of each Nominaton EHRZE & ﬁX,% E & 2 sl sk
Committee member is as follows: ™~
Attendance
Members ME HERE
Mr. Xu Zhigang (appointed as chairman rEMEE (RZZ2E-—hG AT HREZERER) 1/1
on 17 July 2015)
Mr. Xu Xiaoping (appointed as member wNEEE (RZE—AF AT HREZEARZE) 1/1
on 17 July 2015)
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong (appointed as member MEESLE (RZZE—AF+ A ++HEZEAZE) 0/1
On 17 July 2015)
Mr. Yip Heon Keung (ceased to be chairman  E[[&kE (R=ZF—AF A T+LHEREER) 1/1
on 17 July 2015)
Mr. Tam Chun Wan (resigned as director BIRESLE (RZE—hAF A tLAREES) 1/1
on 17 July 2015)
Ms. Lai May Lun (resigned as director REMRZET (RZTE—AFEATEHREES) 1/1

on 17 July 2015)
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 7 March 2000
and has formulated and from time to time amended its written terms
of reference in accordance with the provisions set out in the CG
Code. The existing Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Poon Yan Wai (Chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Xu Xiaoping and Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong and
one non-executive director, namely Mr. Chen Weixi.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include review and
supervision of the Group’s financial reporting system and internal
control procedures, review of the Group’s financial information and
review of the Group’s relationship with its auditors.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the year under review.
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The individual attendance record of each Audit Committee member is 50 8% 40
as follows: N
Attendance

Members RE HERE

Mr. Poon Yan Wai (appointed as chairman EBLERSE (RZE—AFTANREZEARERE) 2/2
on 8 October 2015)

Mr. Xu Xiaoping (appointed as member HNERE (RZ2E—RAFEATEABZERZE) 3/3
on 17 July 2015)

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong (appointed as member  MEE%4E (RZFT—RAF A T+HREZREAREZE) 3/3
On 17 July 2015)

Mr. Chen Weixi (appointed as member PRIEER A (RZE—RAF AT HHEZEAZE) 0/3
On 17 July 2015)

Ms. Wong Chi Yan (appointed and resigned as  && B+ (’ﬁ}”an‘A —RFEtATHHEZAR 1/1
chairman on 17 July 2015 and RZZE—AF+ANBEREERE)
8 October 2015 respectively)

Mr. Tam Chun Wan (resigned as director BIREAE (RZE—AFEATLABEES) 2/2
on 17 July 2015)

Ms. Lai May Lun (resigned as director BEMmutT (RZE—RAFtA+LAREES) 2/2
on 17 July 2015)

Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine (resigned as director # AR L+t (R=—E—AF+ A+ HEETES) 2/2

on 17 July 2015)
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results and audited
annual results during the year ended 31 March 2016 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion that the
preparation of such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosure has been
made.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering
and reviewing the appointment of the external auditors and reviewing
any non-audit functions performed by the external auditors, including
whether such non-audit functions could lead to any potential material
adverse effect on the Group.

During the year under review, the remuneration in respect of audit
services provided by the auditors, amounted to HK$600,000 and no
non-audit related services was provided.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group and ensure that the financial
statements are in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the timely
publication of the financial statements of the Group.

The statements of the external auditors of the Group, HLB, about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group are
set out in the section headed “Independent Auditors’ Report” of this
annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the maintenance of a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group and has established the
Group’s internal control policies and procedures for monitoring the
internal control system. The internal control system of the Group is
designed to achieve business objectives, safeguard assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, ensure maintenance of proper
books and records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use or publication, and ensure compliance with
relevant legislations and regulations. The management and various
departments conduct periodic self-assessment of the effectiveness
of the internal control policies and procedures. Besides, the Board
reviews at least annually the overall effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system.

However, certain internal controls were not enforced effectively in
the De-Consolidated Subsidiaries during the year under review.
Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 24
June 2016. In light of the issue associated with the non-cooperation
of the management of the De-Consolidated Subsidiaries (the
“Identified Issue”), the Board has resolved to take legal action in
respect of the Identified Issue and financial adviser and legal adviser
have been appointed in this connection. The Board has been taking
all reasonable steps and has been using its best endeavours to
protect interest of the Group and try to resolve the Identified Issue.
The Company will keep the shareholders and potential investors
informed of any material development in this connection as and when
appropriate.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

Review of the internal control system has been performed by
executive management and the Directors after the Identified Issue
was brought to the attention of the Board. Based on review of the
financial and control situation of the members of the Group other than
the De-Consolidated Subsidiaries, the Board is satisfied that there are
no other significant governance matters unrelated to the Identified
Issue that have had a material impact on the amounts reported and
disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
Besides internal review, the Company may also engage independent
internal control specialists to carry out an internal control review when
considered necessary. Improvement actions will be carried out and
monitored by the management of the Company and follow-up review
will be conducted to ensure the improvement actions are efficiently
and effectively in force.

The Board is of the view that the Group’s internal control system
is effectively implemented within the Group other than in the De-
Consolidated Subsidiaries, with room for improvement, to achieve
the Group’s internal control objectives. Going forward, the Board
will oversee the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis. It will ensure that the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems are properly designed and
implemented and a review of the effectiveness of such systems will be
conducted at least annually. The Board will also ensure that adequate
resources will be allocated to the Company’s risk management and
internal control functions to achieve the Group’s internal control
objectives.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RELATIONS

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency
and employs a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant
information to its Shareholders.

The Board strives to encourage and maintain constant dialogue
with its Shareholders through various means. The Directors host the
annual general meeting each to meet the Shareholders and answer
their enquiries. The Company also updates its Shareholders on its
latest business developments and financial performance through its
annual, interim and quarterly reports. The website of the Company
has provided an effective communication platform to the public and
the Shareholders.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETINGS

During the year ended 31 March 2016, an annual general meeting of
the Company was held on 5 August 2015. The individual attendance
record of each Director is as follows:

BRERRE

BE-ZT—R"E-_A=T"HLEFE &2
ﬂﬁé_g AFENARRABETRRAFK
g REFZEHESHITHENT

Attendance
Directors = YRR
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Xu Zhigang (Chairman) wrEREE (2E)

(appointed on 25 June, 2015) (RZE-RF A A-+RBEEZRE) 1/1
Mr. Han Jun BELL 01
Mr. Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony BRALE

(appointed on 26 February, 2016) (RZE-—REZAZT BEZT) N/A A
Ms. Ding Pingying (appointed on 25 June, 2015 THEZT (R=Z-RF A=+hA

and resigned on 26 February 2016) BRERR T "F-A-1/NEEHE) 17
Mr. Yip Heon Ping (resigned on 17 July, 2015) En¥as (RS- hEtA+tARMT) N/AT
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Chen Weixi (appointed on 25 June, 2015) BREREE (RZT—hE A THBEZE) 0/1
Mr. Yip Heon Keung (redesignated from an executive Ermkt (R= 2 hFELA+LA

Director with effect from 17 July, 2015) WRITEERT) 0/
Mr. Song Xuxi (appointed on 1 June, 2016) RBEEE (R=T—~E A—BEZ) N/ANER
Ms. Li Luyi (resigned on 17 July, 2015) FE—t (R=Z—hFtA+LHEE) N/A N F
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong (appointed on 25 June, 2015) MEELAE (MR- RFAAZTHARZEM) n
Mr. Xu Xiaoping (appointed on 25 June, 2015) BNEEE (RZE-—RFAAZTHBEEZL) 1/1
Mr. Poon Yan Wai (appointed on 8 October, 2015) ACEEE (R-Z-RFTANREZE) N/ATER
Ms. Wong Chi Yan (appointed on 25 June, 2015 BEERLL (RS- RE A-TRHARZA

and resigned on 8 October 2015) ERZE-RETANBET) 11
Mr. Tam Chun Wan (resigned on 17 July, 2015) ERRAE (R-E-RFtATLHEHT) N/ATER
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine (resigned on 17 July, 2015) #ARZE (R=F—hFtA+LREE) NATER
Ms. Lai May Lun (resigned on 17 July, 2015) BEmit (R=Z-RFtA+LAEE) N/ATER

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code requires all independent non-
executive directors and non-executive directors should attend general
meetings of listed issuers. Mr. Chen Weixi and Mr. Yip Heon Keung,
non-executive Directors, were unable to attend the annual general
meeting held on 5 August 2015 due to their personal commitments.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has disclosed all necessary information to the
Shareholders and established a range of communication channels
between itself, its Shareholders and investors in compliance with the
GEM Listing Rules. During the year under review, there is no change
in the Company'’s constitutional documents.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2012 Revision). However, Shareholders are
requested to follow article 64 of the Articles of Association, general
meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of any one or
more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one day of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expense incurred by the requisition(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
PROPOSE A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A
DIRECTOR

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for election as
a Director are laid down in article 113 of the Articles of Association.
No person other than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election to
the office of Director at any general meeting unless a notice in writing
of the intention to propose such person for election as a Director,
signed by a Shareholder (other than the person to be proposed for
election as a Director) duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting
for which such notice is given, and a notice in writing signed by
such person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged
at the head office or at the Registration Office. The minimum length
of the period during which such notices are given shall be at least
seven clear days and the period for lodgement of such notices shall
commence no earlier than the day immediately after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such intention
and end no later than seven days before the date of such general
meeting.

PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES
TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the
attention of the Company Secretary, by fax: (852) 2838 2922, e-mail at
ir@prosten.com.cn or mail to Unit 905, Star House, 3 Salisbury Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules, and publishes periodic reports and announcements to
the public in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. The
primary focus of the Company is to ensure information disclosure
is timely, fair, accurate, truthful and complete thereby enabling
Shareholders as well as the public to make rational and informed
decisions.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

B EIR R

Bl M5 &3t % & R A F

Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HL

To the shareholders of Prosten Technology Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of Prosten Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
64 to 172, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial
position as at 31 March 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors (the “Directors”) of the Company are responsible for
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B A AR

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibilty towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Except for the inability to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence as explained below, we conducted our
audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement. Because of the matter described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph, however, we were not able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

De-consolidation of certain subsidiaries

As detailed in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements,
certain subsidiaries were deconsolidated (the “De-Consolidated
Subsidiaries”) from the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2016 due to the loss of control since 1 January 2016
(the “De-Consolidation”).

We have not been provided with sufficient information and
explanations on the De-Consolidated Subsidiaries and there were
no alternative audit procedures that we could perform to satisfy
ourselves as to whether the De-Consolidation was appropriate to
deconsolidate the assets and liabilities and cease to record results of
operations of the De-Consolidated Subsidiaries from the consolidated
financial statements from 1 January 2016 for the financial year ended
31 March 2016.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B A AR

As the Company was unable to provide complete books and records
of the De-Consolidated Subsidiaries, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence and explanations to determine
as to (i) whether an amount due to the De-Consolidated Subsidiaries
was properly recorded and accounted for and in compliance with the
requirements of applicable HKFRSs (ii) whether the net loss on the
De-Consolidation and the result of the De-Consolidated Subsidiaries
for a period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015, which were
charged to the Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March 2016 were
free from material misstatement, and (iii) whether the contingent
liabilities and commitments, the events after the reporting period and
the related party transactions of the De-Consolidated Subsidiaries,
were properly recorded, accounted for, disclosed and in compliance
with the requirements of applicable HKFRSs in the consolidated
financial statements. There were no alternative audit procedures that
we could perform (i) to satisfy ourselves as to whether, the amount
due to the De-Consolidated Subsidiaries, the contingent liabilities and
commitments of the De-Consolidated Subsidiaries and the net loss on
de-consolidation and the result of the De-Consolidated Subsidiaries
for a period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 which were
charged to the Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March 2016, were
free from material misstatements, (ii) over the significant transactions
after the reporting period of the De-Consolidated Subsidiaries which
occurred during the period from 1 April 2016 to the date of this
auditors’ report and over the related party transactions of the De-
Consolidated Subsidiaries which occurred during the year ended 31
March 2016.

Any adjustments or additional disclosures found to be necessary in
respect of the above matters, including any related tax impact, will
have a consequential significant effect on the financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2016 and the financial performance and cash
flows of the Group for the year then ended, and may have resulted in
additional information being disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements as to the nature of the transactions and any contingent
liabilities, commitments, related party transactions and significant
subsequent event related to the Group.

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B 2B S

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis
for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraphs, we have not been able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for
an audit opinion. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements as whether they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2016 and of
the Group’s financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in compliance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and as to whether the financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

REPORT ON OTHER MATTERS UNDER
SECTIONS 407(2) AND 407(3) OF THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE

In respect alone of the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding the De-Consolidated Subsidiaries as described
in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report above:

o we were unable to determine whether adequate accounting
records had been kept; and

° we have not obtained all the information or explanations that,

to the best of our knowledge and belief, are necessary and
material for the purpose of the audit.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Chi Fat
Practising Certificate Number: P05467

Hong Kong, 27 June 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
reEEkEMEERE

Year ended 31 March 2016 %2 —F—~NF=H=+—HIFFZ

2016 2015
AL —T-hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BsE FER FHTT
Revenue Wz 8,9 10,050 9,763
Cost of sales THE RN (4,641) (3,213)
Gross profit EX 5,409 6,550
Other income and gains H A A ez 9 604 1,806
Selling expenses HERX (3,635) (2,989)
Administrative expenses TR (23,068) (31,414)
Other expenses EmmEY (60) (2,179)
Net loss on de-consolidation BUHEMI B A BIERE AR
of subsidiaries 2SR 36 (10,555) —
Finance costs B 5% A 10 (46) (81)
Loss before tax BRBLATEE 11 (31,351) (28,307)
Income tax expense PSR 14 (8) (1,400)
Loss for the year attributable to AN EIRERFE AEMN
equity holders of the Company FREE (31,359) (29,707)
Other comprehensive Hth2mEuz (%) :
income/(expense):
Item that may be reclassified HE g EF S E R o
subsequently to profit or 10ss: EA -
Exchange differences on translation BREBINE 2 ER
of foreign operations =5 66 (17)
Reclassification adjustment relatingto ~ FRBREINEFREUS
foreign operation de-consolidation A ARz ERDERARE
during the year (87) -
Net gain on revaluation of EAHEEEHEE
available-for-sale financial assets s 558 6,760 —
Total comprehensive expense BATERFEE ARG
for the year attributable to FRAEXEMAXERE
equity holders of the Company (24,620) (29,724)
Loss per share attributable to AAREBEREE AEM
ordinary equity holders BRER
of the Company 15
Basic eI (HK3.52) (HK3.87)
cents &1 cents 71l
Diluted e (HK3.52) (HK3.87)
cents &1l cents 7l
Details of dividend are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial B EIREZ FHBEEH N ERE M MwKMIFE33 ©

statements.

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

31 March 2016 —E—~F=H=+—H

2016 2015
AL —T—hfF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BsE FET FiET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB KRB 16 2,067 2,351
Investment property WEME 17 — 4,367
Deposits HEq 23 46 141
Available-for-sale financial assets AHESREE 19 22,179 832
Goodwill Bk 20 3,908 —
Total non-current assets FREEEHARE 28,200 7,691
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 21 15,266 —
Trade receivables JE W R TR 22 26,862 4,974
Prepayments, deposits and TEREIE -« 5l KHEHAM
other receivables FEMRIA 23 4,130 3,132
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEY 24 28,761 1,778
Total current assets REEEARE 75,019 9,884
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables FEASBRIR 26 2,703 9,713
Other payables and accruals Eth JE < 5RIE SR FE R RIE 27 8,336 11,767
Due to non-executive Directors JENIEMITE R 2 508 25 5,425 2,000
Due to an ultimate holding company FERT R AR IEAR A R 2 508 29 142 =3
Due to de-consolidated FERTEURSR S AR
subsidiaries R EEMNG] 7O 29 15,300 e
Interest-bearing borrowing, secured EEMTEEE 28 — 1,125
Tax payable FERTFRIR 178 3,337
Total current liabilities REBEEAHE 32,084 27,942

RERRZERBR AR
ZE-ARFEER



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mE AR R

31 March 2016 —F—~NF=H=+—H

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-hHF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
BsE FER FHTT
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) HKig&E, ~ (8E) BE 42,935 (18,058)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EERERRBERE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 71,135 (10,367)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FREBEE
Deferred tax liability EXEHIBEE 30 181 500
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) BE/ (86 BE 70,954 (10,867)
EQUITY/(DEFICIT IN ASSETS) Bz (BEBH)
Equity/(Deficit in assets) EARERBFEA
attributable to equity holders LR (BEB)
of the Company
Share capital (&N 31 109,536 79,610
Reserves & (38,582) (90,477)
TOTAL EQUITY/(DEFICIT IN ASSETS) #i# ~(BEEA) #%5E 70,954 (10,867)

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised ~ #RE M BHRKRENR T —RF A ++A
for issue by the board of Directors (the “Board”) on 27 June 2016 and EBEZE ((EF£¥)) TH:/E &T’*%?‘J?X R

were signed on its behalf by:

Xu Zhigang
f’%lu\ ﬁlj

Chairman

T

ERATATIRREZTSRE

Han Jun
BE
Director

EE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial — FEMt 2 MisE RZEMBwK AKX D -
statements.

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AEEREER

Year ended 31 March 2016 %2 —F—~NF=H=+—HIFFZ

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ALARRREAEL
Available-
for-sale
financial  Foreign
Share  Statutory ~ assets currency Share
Share  premium  reserve  equity translation  option Accumulated  Reserves Total
Notes capital  account fund  reserve  reserve  reserve  losses  sub-fotal equity
e
R AT SREE e BRE
i e BER BEEE EREE  ENGE ffff 2EEE @R BEES
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS0OD  HK§0OD  HK§000  HKS000  HKS000
Thr  TEL  THAr  TEr TR TR TR TEL T
(notea)  (noteb)  (notec)
(Wita)  (Wib) (o)
AL Al 2015 HoB-RERA-A 60 J8E8 339 — W6 (I8 (G04T)  (1086)
Loss for the year EnrElE - - - - - — (31359 (31359 (31359
Other comprehensive EREtRTENE/
income/(expense) for the year: (B%):
Exchange differences on translation RERNEEL
of foreign operations EiEE - - - - 66 - - 66 66
Re-classffication of forelgn currency ranslation EREEBINERTHE
reserve relating to foreign operafions BAENE
de-consolidated during the year B BEENIE % - - - - ® - - 87 87
Net gain on revaluation of avallable-orsale  EffTAHESREEY
financial assets ey - - - 6,760 - - - 6,760 6,760
Total comprehensive income/(expense) Ehzmhs/ (FY)
for the year 85 - - - 60 1) — 19 (462)  (2462)
Eouity-settled share option WERES 2 ElE
arrangements 7 3 - - - - - 106 - 106 106
Exercise of share opfions I 3 314 04 - - - (401) - 303 617
Placements of new shaes REHR U 2612 77466 - - - - - TiM6 107078
Expenses on issue of new shares ES0E i) wd i R/ - (1,360) - - - - — (1360 (1,360)
At 31 March 2016 RZE-~EZA
=t-H 109,536 455,438 3,349 6,760 14,766 36 (519.211) (38562 70,954
At 1 April 2014 R-Z-BERA-A 7563 372468 3,349 - 14,804 10041 (465481)  (64819) 10816
Loss for the year ERER - - = = - —(9707) (9707 (29707)
Other comprehensive income EREfamls
for the year:
Exchange diferences on ranslation BERISTZ
of foreign operations E5 =8 - - - - (17) - - (1) (1)
Total comprehensive EREERR
expense for the year g - - - - (17 — (9707)  (9724)  (29724)
Fouity-setfled share option INERLE Bl
arrangements 7 % = = = = = 28 = %8 %8
Transfer of share opfion reserve ERERSNEEE
on the forfefted share aptions ElRiERE Y = = = = — (73%6)  73% — -
Exercise of share options frE e % 2475 384 = _ - 2% — 149 39
Placement of new shares REHR U 1500 2550 - - - - — 250 4080
Expenses onissue of new shares B RS 34 - (231) - - - - = (231) (231)
At31 March 2015 W-F-1E=4
=f-f 79610 378628 3,349 — 14,787 611 (487852)  (90477)  (10,867)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
rEERE B
Year ended 31 March 2016 #Z = F—~NF=H=+—HIFZ

Notes to consolidated statement of changes in equity:

(a)

Statutory reserve fund

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for business enterprises
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), a portion of the profits of
the entities which are registered in the PRC has been transferred to the
statutory reserve fund which is restricted as to use. When the balance of
such reserve fund reaches 50% of the capital of that entity, any further
appropriation is optional. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised,
upon approval of the relevant authority, to offset prior years’ losses or
to increase capital. However, the balance of the statutory reserve fund
must be maintained at least 25% of capital after such usage.

Available-for-sale financial assets equity reserve

Available-for-sale financial assets equity reserve relates to the
cumulative gains or losses arising on the change in fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets that have been recognised in other
comprehensive income, net of amounts reclassified to profit or loss
when those financial assets are disposed or impaired.

Foreign currency translation reserve

Foreign currency translation reserve represents exchange differences
relating to the translation of the net assets of the Group’s foreign
operations from their functional currencies to the Group’s presentation
currency (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated in the
foreign currency translation reserve are reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal or de-consolidation of the foreign operations.

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AERETMER

Year ended 31 March 2016 %2 —F—~NF=H=+—HIFFZ

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Liksg FER FHTT
CASH FLOWS FROM REXBCRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax FREERIEE (31,351) (28,307)
Adjustments for: KRR THRIE
Finance costs MEER 10 46 81
Interest income FBMA 9, 11 (64) (134)
Investment income WEWA 9, 11 (152) (502)
Gain on disposal of items of HEME - BB K&
property, plant and equipment B 2 W 9 — (1,170)
Depreciation e 11, 16 1,114 1,053
Equity-settled share option DHESEE 2
arrangements R EE 11, 34 106 268
Fair value (gain)/loss on wEME L NEEE
an investment property (Wzs) /B 9,11, 17 (388) 408
Impairment allowances FEWBR ROR B
on trade receivables 11, 22 827 222
Net loss on de-consolidation BUHM B R Rl4RE AR
of subsidiaries ZEEER 11, 36 10,555 —
(19,307) (28,081)
Increase in trade receivables JE L BR SR AN (23,677) —
Increase in inventories FEM (14,264) —
(Decrease)/increase in prepayments, TARFRIA « 7] & R EAFEL
deposits and other receivables g ORd) /3 (2,783) 4,933
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables  FEfTBRFIE N, CRid>) 24 (239)
Increase in other payables E At fE < 5018 I ST RIE
and accruals 0 704 312
Increase in due to an ultimate FERSEIERARZ
holding company SRIAIE N 142 —
Increase in due to non-executive FERIFEENITE T 2 FIEIE N
Directors 3,425 1,465
Exchange realignment VE G B 641 5
Cash used in operations KEXBFRAZ RS (55,095) (21,605)
Profits taxes paid outside Hong Kong BN EBEIINFEFIE — (6)
Net cash outflow in operating activities A% & %75 2 IR &7 7 F 58 (55,095) (21,611)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘l-ﬁ/\IﬁﬁlJlei%

Year ended 31 March 2016 2 —F—~NF=HA=+—HIFFZ

2016 2015
AL —hEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Liksg FER FHTT
Net cash outflow in operating activities ~ #&& ¥ 2B &R F58 (55,095) (21,611)
CASH FLOWS FROM REXBZRERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received BHFILE 9, 11 64 134
Investment income received B U E WA 9, 11 152 502
Purchases of items of property, BAYE  BERKEEE
plant and equipment 16 (395) (27)
Proceeds from disposal of items HEWZE - BEREZBEIEE
of property, plant and equipment FriSsRIE 9, 11 — 1,170
Purchases of available-for-sale BARMHTESRERE
financial assets 19 (15,000) —
Net cash outflow from acquisition I g10)=NCvd
of subsidiaries e FEE 35 (6,683) —
De-consolidation of subsidiaries BUBM B R alsRE AR 36 (1,773) —
Decrease in pledged deposits BEEFFRRLD — 250
Exchange realignment b 3 A% (19) (13)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from WEHESE
investing activities Be Ond) /mMAFE (23,654) 2,016
CASH FLOWS FROM MEXBZRERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceed from exercise of share options 1T E& A% #E 15 2/ IA 617 3,954
Proceed from issue of shares Ao & 3T AR FT1S 5K 1R
under placing 105,718 3,819
New interest-bearing borrowing raised ~ &S 28 EE — 2,063
Repayment of secured borrowings HEBEAEER (623) (938)
Interest paid BEAFE 10 (46) (81)
Net cash flows inflow MEXBZRERE
from financing activities MAFER 105,666 8,817
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) INCASH R&RHREZEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #in, GRd) BEE 26,917 (10,778)
Cash and cash equivalent FBReRRSEED
at beginning of year 1,778 12,570
Effect of foreign exchange MEREE) 58 HRE
rate changes, net 66 (14)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZAERAESEEY
AT THE END OF YEAR 28,761 1,778
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR ERR M

31 March 2016 —F—F=H=+—H

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is Century
Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands. The address of its
principal place of business is Unit 905, Star House, 3 Salisbury
Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s
shares are listed on the GEM.

On 1 April 2015, Dynamic Peak Limited (the “Offeror”), and
Century Technology Holding (PTC) Limited, Bakersfield Global
(PTC) Corporation and Greenford Company (PTC) Limited
(the “Vendors”) entered into a sale and purchase agreement
(“S&P Agreement”). Pursuant to which, the Offeror conditionally
agreed to purchase and the Vendors conditionally agreed to
sell the aggregate of 294,276,619 shares of the Company (the
“Sale Shares”), for a total consideration of HK$79,454,687.13
(representing HK$0.27 per Sale Share). The completion of the
S&P Agreement took place on 29 April 2015. For details, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 29 April 2015.

As a result of the completion of S&P Agreement, Dynamic Peak
Limited (“Dynamic”) became the immediate and ultimate holding
company of the Company. As at 31 March, 2016, Dynamic held
approximately 26.87% interest in the Company and continued to
be the single largest shareholder of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the
financial statements.
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2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) (which include all individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations (“Ints”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap 622) regarding preparation of accounts and directors’
reports and audits became effective for the Company for the
financial year ended 31 March 2016. Further, the disclosure
requirements set out in the Listing Rules regarding annual
accounts have been amended with reference to the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap 622) and to streamline
with HKFRSs. Accordingly the presentation and disclosure of
information in the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2016 have been amended to
comply with these new requirements. Comparative information
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2015 are presented
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements based
on the new requirements. Information previously required to
be disclosed under the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance or Listing Rules but not under the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance or amended Listing Rules are not
disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION 3. IRELE%E

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
convention, except for investment property and available-for-
sale financial assets which have been measured at fair value.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar which is also the functional currency of
the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated. The Group’s major
subsidiaries are operated in the PRC with Renminbi (“RMB”) as
their functional currency.

De-consolidation

Despite the Board have repeated verbal and written requests
(including legal letter), the Board had been unable to access the
complete set of books and records together with the supporting
documents of certain subsidiaries incorporated in Shanghai (the
“Shanghai Subsidiaries”) for the period from 1 January 2016 to
31 March 2016 for the purpose of, among others, preparing the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2016.

As a result, due to the Board considered that the Company was
unable to govern the Shanghai Subsidiaries, and the control
over these subsidiaries was lost, the Group had de-consolidated
the financial results, assets and liabilities of the Shanghai
Subsidiaries from the consolidated financial statements of
the Group since 1 January 2016. The de-consolidation has
resulted in a net loss on de-consolidation of subsidiaries of
approximately HK$10,555,000.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 3. RREE @

De-consolidation (continued)

The following tables set out the financial information of the de-
consolidated subsidiaries.

Financial Result

The followings are the unaudited financial results of the de-
consolidated subsidiaries for the nine months ended 31
December 2015. These financial results have been included in
the unaudited consolidated financial results included in the third
quarterly report of the Company.

For the nine months ended 31 December 2015

BUEGZRE AR (@)
TREHN TS A ABENB AT 2 Bt
AR o

EVE S

T ABSRA ARHBARRE -
2-RE+=A=+-RILAEAZ
REBRAELE - REUBLEAD
HARAREZEEEMARE 2R
BRGA MM -

BE—F-—HF+-A=1+—HIA
1&A

T

Unaudited
RECEZ
HK$'000
T
Revenue e 5,061
Loss for the period attributable to
equity holders of the Company KRB FE ARGHNER (4,203)

Assets and liabilities

The followings are the unaudited assets and liabilities of
the de-consolidated subsidiaries immediate before the de-
consolidation on 1 January 2016, and the effect of impairment
of investments costs and amounts due from the de-consolidated
subsidiaries are set out below.

EEREE
INTARBCEGZEEARHBATIR_F
—NF—A—-BEEBHEZAS ARA
CABREVEERBE  MEREKA
K W EUEAE & ARRM B A B2 5IE
ZRETFER T »

Immediate before

de-consolidation

on 1 January 2016
R-E—X"FE—H—H

SZEEUHAZ S ARA
(Unaudited)
(REBEZ)
HK$'000
FETT

Assets and liabilities de-consolidated: BUHGRAEARZEERERE !
Non-current assets IEmENE E 6,389
Current assets MENEE 18,446
Current liabilities mEaE (66,435)
Non-current liabilities ES e UN=K= (302)
Net liabilities de-consolidated BUBSrE AR ZBEFE (41,902)
Effect of written off of investments in de-consolidated N BUBAR S ABRHB A A

subsidiaries and amounts due from ZIEE K EWEBUELR A ARR

the de-consolidated subsidiaries WB AR Z KB & 52,544
Translation reserves 0E (87)
Net loss on de-consolidation BUHARE AR Z B518)5%8 10,555
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current ability
to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiaries and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired, disposed or de-consolidated of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

In the current year, the Group has applied the following revised
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, which are relevant to the Group
and effective for the first time for the Group’s current year’s
financial statements.

Amendments of HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:

Employee Contributions

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior year and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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5. HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET

EFFECTIVE

The Group has not applied or early adopted the following new
or revised HKFRSs (including their consequential amendments)
that have been issued but not yet effective in these consolidated
financial statements. The name and principal nature of
pronouncements which may be relevant to the Group are set out

below.

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendment to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers!
Leases*

Disclosure Initiative®

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation?

Agriculture: Bearer Plant?

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle?

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations?
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associated or Joint Venture®

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January

2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January
2016

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
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5. HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and
for derecognition,and in 2013 to included the new requirements
for general hedge accounting. Another revised version of
HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include a) impairment
requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendments to
the classification and measurement requirements by introducing
a FVTOCI measurement category for certain simple debt

instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9:

° all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are required to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that are
held within a business model whose objective is achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms that
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are generally measured at FVTOCI. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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5. HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

the new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting mechanisms currently
available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9, greater flexibility
has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible
for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types
of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and
the types of risk components of non-financial items
that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
retrospective quantitative effectiveness test has been
removed. Enhanced disclosure requirements about
an entity’'s risk management activities have also been
introduced.

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 9 in

the future may have material impact on amounts reported and

disclosures made in respect of the Group’s financial assets.

However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of the effect of HKFRS 9 until a detailed review has been
completed.
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5. HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations
when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocated the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ for
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.
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5.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15
in the future may have a material impact on the amounts
reported and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group
performs a detailed review.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of these new or
revised HKFRSs upon their initial application but is not yet in a
position to state whether they would have any significant impact
in its results of operation and financial position. It is anticipate
that all of the pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s
accounting policy in the accounting period when they first
become effective.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)

rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
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6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT FESHBEEERE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
result to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s investments in subsidiaries that are not classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over
the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as
at the end of reporting period. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.
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6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the disposed operation and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment property and available-for-
sale financial assets at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R IR AR M T

FESTEHRME @)

EE @)
MENBBTEENEEBEY HeE
R (HBEEEBMAR) 2 ATk
D4HET - ¥BHEEL B (B
EABMAR) 2 TKES EERER
SHEE O REBBETURR - 28
EOBSRERSELEN (RBEE
EERAR) 0 MEAELLR 2 HHEH
O RIS EEKIEEY &
BN NSRBI AZLEE
BEEME - EREERTHE Y HETD
W E Y 2R RIS E S BARE
WO BB ETE -

ATEEE
AEEREREMRELFEEGNE
HRBEMELAHRBESREE - 2
FEREAMSE2EEZHARTERH
EBFR 5T HEEEMBRERE®
BEMAHERS - A FEEED
BROEEEXBRABEZIRHINE
EXBEZTBEMSX (EEXEMS
BAT) BEXRBEZRAEEMGE
T- TBAZABENHRARARE
AEANTS - BEXABZIAFE
ENERTSHE2RER/BEEXARE
EBEPTA BRE (BRERM52EE
RIBRENRELENRITE) ©

FemEENRTFEEFERNND
L2RERBEAZEEZ&RR MR
EREIHZEEHE TREMRER
BRREREZZ—TH2EEME
B EE 2 RETT °

AEEFRMEARTRBRARETR
DEBEUAHABERAFEENGES
o NEREERARIBEEHABE
BERVERTABRBABUE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e AR R M

31 March 2016 —F—~NF=H=+—H

6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT FESHBEEERE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Fair value measurement (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
Level 1:  inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2:  inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3:  inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than deferred
tax assets, financial assets and investment property), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises (only if
there are revalued assets in the financial statements), unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.
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6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 6. FESHBEHE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off

the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its

residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual

rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold building 2.5% or over the lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements 30% or over the lease terms,

whichever is shorter

Office equipment 30%
Computer equipment 30%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Motor vehicles 30%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at the
end of each financial period.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Investment property

An investment property is an interest in land and buildings held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such property is measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
property is stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of an
investment property are included in profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised to profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on weighted average basis for
homogenous items while it is determined on an actual unit
cost basis for certain unique or specific items and, in the case
of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads, and where appropriate, subcontracting charges.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT FESHBEEERE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to profit or loss so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as
operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased
by the Group under operating leases are included in non-current
assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases are
credited to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor
are charged to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating lease are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements,
the entire lease payments are included in the cost of land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.
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6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial assets
are recognised initially, the are measured at fair value, plus, in
the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance income in profit or loss. The
loss arising from impairment is recognised in profit or loss in
other expenses.
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6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 6. FESHBEHE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets RERHMERMEE @)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued) HEZBTE (&)
Available-for-sale financial assets R ELHEE

AHEESMEEDR LM RIELD
BREREGEFIFITETREE -
DERAHEHE ZRERETEERD
BABEEERETIREE/ERAF
BEINGRLEEDREE ZBRER

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity and debt securities. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value
through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those

which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time B o R BEBES RN ERD
and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in Wﬁﬁj’[—fﬁ AR EL s HEHXA
response to changes in market conditions. REBMEE 2 SRIRE °

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are R ERE  AIHHESREER
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains BB AT EETE  RERABBNZ
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the RERHEERAN AT HEE /\Eﬂ‘iiéfé
available-for-sale financial assets equity reserve until the EREEAERSEMAEZE RS
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain R R EE RN ERRAER

or loss is recognised in profit or loss, or until the investment is ZIREETERRE " FHTE‘%'+EE5E

determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and removed from the
available-for-sale financial assets equity reserve. Interest and
dividends earned are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in profit or loss in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such securities are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.
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6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets
whether the ability and intention to sell them in the near term
are still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s
intent to do so significantly changes in the foreseeable future,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets in
rare circumstances. Reclassification to loans and receivables
is permitted when the financial assets meet the definition of
loans and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability
to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or to maturity.
Reclassification to the held-to-maturity category is permitted
only when the entity has the ability and intent to hold until the
maturity date of the financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale
category, any previous gain or loss on that asset that has
been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective interest
rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and the
expected cash flows is also amortised over the remaining
life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset
is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount
recorded in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
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6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised
when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cashflows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant,
or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT FESHBEEERE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised
in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair
value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a
derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery
of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.
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6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence
that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in profit or loss, is removed from the
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost. The
determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost
of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss — is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available of sale are not reversed through the
income statement. Increases in their fair value after impairment
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and
in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.
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6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 6. FESHBEHE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if,
and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amount and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash,
which are no restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax asset and liability for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which
the Group operates.
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6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

° where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax asset is reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and is recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax asset and liability are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax asset against
current tax liability and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) services income, when the relevant services have been
rendered;

(b) Sale of goods income, which is recognised when the
goods are delivered and title has passed, at which time all
the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;
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6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 6. FESHBEHE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(b) (continued)
° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset; and

(d) investment income, when the policyholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Employee benefits
Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme which is
currently in force and effect for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
Directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of
share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the
fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value
is determined by an external valuer using a binomial option
pricing model, further details of which are given in note 32 to the
financial statements.
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6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payment transactions (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which
the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions
at the end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not a market
or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that
it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if
they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph. All cancellations of equity-settled
transaction awards are treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options, if any, is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT FESHBEEERE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Employee benefits (continued)
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme. Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China are required to participate in the employee retirement
scheme operated by the relevant local government bureau in
Mainland China. The contributions to be borne by the Group are
calculated at a certain percentage of the salaries and wages for
those eligible employees.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. All differences are taken to the statement of
profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined.
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6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Company
at the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating to
that particular foreign operation is recognised in the income
statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(iy  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group.

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R IR AR M T

FESTEHRME @)

INEE (i)

ET BN B D 72 AL B IES
o RBEWK  REEBRIEER
BEYRRENR Y ERREAAA
AT 2HEE MRSERIERE
RERZ METERRE BB o
R TELS 2 EHE=EREMEEK
HHR WA INEE R Rt
R EGINETE BT ENER
By Eth2EREDONBRERE

5
e

REARERBEERME EHHER
AzBeRERRSREABER
R 0 E AT o SN B A IS
MEEZEEERERERRRTE
2 T ER B BT -

BEEAL
(a) fHEBIATAL  BIZALIHZA
T2 REOBENEEGRE

(i) EHSAREGAESR :
(i) BAKEEEARE %

(iiy AAEENAREEFARZ
TEEEASR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R IR AR M T

31 March 2016 —F—~NF=H=+—H

6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(i)  both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is
apart, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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6.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or
obligations between a group and a related party, regardless of
whether a price is charged.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTIES AND ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.
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7. SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATION ERZE

UNCERTAINTIES AND ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires
management to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating units and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate present value. Please refer to note 20 to the
financial statements for the carrying value of goodwill at the end
of reporting period.

Impairment of trade receivables and other receivables

Impairment of trade receivables and other receivables is
made based on an assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables and other receivables. The identification of doubtful
debts requires management judgement and estimates. Where
the actual outcome or expectation in future is different from
the original estimate, such differences will have an impact
on the carrying value of the receivables as well as doubtful
debt expenses or write-back of doubtful debts in the period in
which such estimate has been changed. Please refer to notes
22 and 23 to the financial statements for the carrying value of
trade receivables and other receivables at the end of reporting
period.

Estimation of fair value of an investment property

As described in note 17 to the financial statements, the
investment property was revalued at the end of the reporting
period on an open market, existing use basis by an independent
firm of professionally qualified valuers. Such valuation was
based on certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty
and might materially differ from the actual results. In making the
estimation, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including current prices in an active market for similar
properties and uses assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.
Please refer to note 17 to the financial statements for the
carrying value of investment property at the end of reporting
period.
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7. SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTIES AND ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Valuation of share options

As described in note 32 to the financial statements, the
Company engaged an independent firm of professional qualified
valuers to assist in the valuation of the share options granted
during the years ended 31 March 2014. The fair value of options
granted under the share option schemes is determined using
the binomial option pricing model. The significant inputs into
the model were share price at grant date, risk-free interest rate,
exercise price and expected volatility of the underlying shares.
When the actual results of the inputs differ from management’s
estimate, it will have an impact on share option expense and the
related share option reserve of the Company. The Company did
not grant any share options during the year. The fair value of the
share options granted during the year ended 31 March 2014
was HK$2,813,000. Further details of the share options are set
out in note 32 to the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred
tax assets relating to recognised tax losses at 31 March 2016
was approximately HK$Nil (2015: HK$Nil). Further details are
contained in note 30 to the financial statements.
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7. SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATION 7. EEFEFTZTEERE

UNCERTAINTIES AND ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Current income taxes

The Group’s subsidiaries that operate in the PRC are subject
to Enterprise Income Tax in the PRC. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax in the period in which such determination
is made. The provision for income tax of the Group at 31 March
2016 was approximately HK$Nil (2015: HK$3,337,000).

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and variable selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste and competitor actions in response to severe
industry cycle. The directors reassess the estimations at the end
of each reporting period.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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7. SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTIES AND ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Judgements (continued)
Revenue recognition

In making its judgement, management considered the detailed
criteria for the recognition of revenue from the sale of goods set
out in HKAS 18 Revenue and, in particular, whether the Group
had transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the goods. Following the detailed quantification
of the Group’s liabilities in respect of rectification work, and the
agreed limitation on the customer’s ability to require further work
or to require replacement of the goods, management is satisfied
that the significant risks and rewards have been transferred and
that recognition of the revenue in the current year is appropriate,
in conjunction with the recognition of an appropriate provision
for the rectification costs.

Determination of functional currency

The Group measures foreign currency transactions in the
respective functional currencies of the Company and its
subsidiaries. In determining the functional currencies of
the entities comprising the Group, judgement is required to
determine and consider the currency that mainly influences
sales prices of services and of the country/jurisdiction whose
competitive forces and regulations mainly determines the sales
prices of services; the currency that mainly influences labour
and other costs of providing services; the currency in which
funds from financing activities are generated; and the currency
in which receipts from operating activities are usually retained.
The functional currencies of the entities comprising the Group
are determined based on management’s assessment of the
primary economic environment in which the entities operate.
When the indicators are mixed and the functional currency is
not obvious, management uses its judgement to determine the
functional currency that most faithfully represents the economic
effects of the underlying transactions, events and conditions.
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8. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating activities are currently attributable to
three operating segments focusing on the wireless value-added
services, trading and retailing of jewelry and lending business
(continuing operation). These operating segments have been
identified on the basis of internal management reports prepared
in accordance with accounting policies conformed to HKFRSs,
that are regularly reviewed by the executive Directors (the
“Executive Directors”) (being the chief operating decision maker
of the Company). The Executive Directors review the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. The details of operating and reportable segments of
the Group are as follows:

° Wireless valued-added services

° Trading and retailing of jewelry

° Lending business
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8. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. &4 HER @
(continued)
The operation of trading and retailing of jewelry and lending KEEENTEEBUREEEBR
business were introduced to the Group during the year. The FASIEREE - REESHE D2
following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by REERREREESTAT -
operating segments:
Wireless Trading and
For the year ended valued-added retailing of Lending
31 March 2016 services jewelry business Consolidation
BE-E-RE BHEEE
ZA=t+—-HLHEE ERIBERY REE BEEB a5t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
THER TER THEr T
REVENUE Wz
External sales SNERSHE 5,061 4,911 78 10,050
RESULTS ES
Segment results profit/(loss) DEEERT] (E5HE) 2,089 (393) 78 1,774
Unallocated income AABKA 543 61 — 604
Unallocated expenses RO (14,259) (8,796) (73) (23,128)
Finance costs EER (11) (35) - (46)
Net loss on de-consolidation of EUEI B A Rl E
subsidiaries AR B1EFE (10,555) — — (10,555)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREEAT (B518) SR F (22,193) (9,163) 5 (31,351)
Wireless Trading and
For the year ended valued-added retailing of Lending
31 March 2015 services jewelry business  Consolidation
BE_Z—NF KEEER
=A=1t—BI%FE BRI ERS REE BEER as
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT FAT FHT
External sales SNEBEHE 9,763 — — 9,763
RESULTS ES
Segment results profit DEEE BT 3,561 — — 3,561
Unallocated income RABKA 1,806 — — 1,806
Unallocated expenses RKOBEFAX (33,185) — — (33,185)
Finance costs MisER (81) = — (81)
Fair value loss REMEZ AT
on investment property EEFEE (408) = = (408)
Loss before taxation BRI B (28,307) = — (28,307)
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8. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. &R& 3 IER @)

(continued)

Segment profit/loss represents the profit/loss earned/suffered by D ERE A, BB TR & 0 EBET AR 0
each segment without allocation of central administration costs, %'J/EEZF?TE BRI AR AR
certain other income, gains and losses and other expenses, THARA - HETEMKA - W RE
finance costs and net loss on de-consolidation of subsidiaries. BUREMAS - BBERREUSH
This is the measure reported to the Executive Directors for the BRAGEARZEEFE R
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment. NERERETHERRMAMITESE
¥R FHAE o
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities BreanHE s A EBEERAE
by operating segment: DITEAT -
2016 2015
ZE-RF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
SEGMENT ASSETS DEEE
Wireless valued-added services L0 (E AR TS 2,061 17,362
Trading and retailing of jewelry HEEENTE 32,041 —
Lending business BEXES 29,098 —
Unallocated assets RO BCEE 40,019 213
103,219 17 578
SEGMENT LIABILITIES SHEE
Wireless valued-added services LI (E AR TS 30,316 28,442
Trading and retailing of jewelry KEEENTE 881 -
Lending business BEXES 249 =
Unallocated liabilities AoEEBE 819 —
32,265 28,442
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8. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
certain prepayments and bank balances and cash held by
the respective head offices from continuing was allocated

—NF=HA=+—H

to the above components segment; and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than liabilities of the respective head offices of continuing,
deferred taxation, and taxation payable from each

segment.

Information about major customers

During the year ended 31 March 2016, revenue of approximately
HK$7,281,000 which represents 72.45% of the Group's total
sales was derived from services rendered to two customers.
During the year ended 31 March 2015, approximately
HK$9,528,000 which represented 97.60% of the Group’s total
sales were derived from services rendered to one customer. No
other single customer contributed 10% or more to the Group’s
revenue for each of the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015.

8.

KBEHSTFER @

s BRREBBELEEBESEERIE
BraTRENRERRITES R
RenblE LI FREE
ENDRELEDE &

s KBRELEXBREREMENZ
BE  ZFOMIELEHRAKLEN
MmN PABERBEHDEELE

5 -

EREXEEFz2EH
REBEE-_ZT—A"E=ZA=+—HLLtF
€ - 497,281,000 02 Yz (G A%
B 1A ERE72.45%) THIR B MMALE
FREZRYE REBEE-_T—HF=
A=+—HLFE ' 9,528,000 7T
(EAREBARIEERE97.60%) THRE A
—NEFPRH IR - $Eﬁ£ﬁiﬁﬂﬂ$—
BEERAEEEEZE-_T—"Fk=
—RFE=A=1+—HIt%F EREZ”&
FHAHRE10% KA L2 L E o

2016 2015

—E-RE —ZE—a4E

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT T

Customer A ZEA 5,061 9,528
Customer B =FB 2,220 —
Others Hifb 2,769 235
10,050 9,763
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8.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Other segment information Hh 5 & R
31 March 2016 —E-XRE=ZA=+-H
Wireless Trading and
valued-added retailing of Lending
services jewelry business Consolidated
BEEE
BARIBERYE REE BEXEK oy
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TERT TERT TERT
Depreciation of property, plant mE - BE REE
and equipment e 756 358 - 1,114
Net loss on de-consolidation EUEM B A Bl E AR
of subsidiaries ZERFE 10,555 — — 10,555
Impairment losses on RN R R EEE
trade receivables 827 — — 827
Income tax expense FTisfif S — 8 — 8
31 March 2015 —E-RF=A=+—H
Wireless Trading and
valued-added retailing of Lending
services jewelry business  Consolidated
KEER
(B R REE EEER e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TAT TAT FHET
Depreciation of property, plant M - BE Rkt
and equipment e 1,053 — - 1,053
Impairment losses on EYERFUREEE
trade receivables 222 — — 222
Income tax expense TS i 1,400 — — 1,400

RERRZERBR AR
—E-XRFEER
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31 March 2016 —F—~NF=H=+—H

9. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND

GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net

invoiced value of good sold and services rendered during the

s - EplRA R WS

WA ARBZ EX58  HFRNER
HE RFTRE RS 2 HZFE -

years.
An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains is AEEKE - HWA Rk
as follows: N
2016 2015
AL —hEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Revenue &
Net invoiced value of goods sold and EmisE KA R
services rendered ZEBEERE 10,050 9,763
Other income and gains HA A R W
Bank interest income HRITHEUA 64 134
Investment income FEWA 152 502
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME  BMEMREEE
plant and equipment Pl € — 1,170
Fair value gain on an investment REWMEZ N EERE
property (note 17) (FF&E17) 388 —
604 1,806
10,654 11,569
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. 5 E A
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MEERITAT :
2016 2015
AL —E—T1F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBx FT
Interest on borrowing wholly repayable ARAFANBHEEZ
within five years and total borrowing cost £ &8 RAAEERA 46 81

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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31 March 2016 —EF— X#F=HA=4+—H

1. R ATE 1]

AEEZBRBATEBREMR, (GEA)

11.LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting): THEIRBER
2016 2015
A —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FHT
Cost of services* ARFS A AN 1,037 S
Cost of sales SHERAR 3,604 3,213
Depreciation (note 16)* e (fisE1e)” 1,114 1,053
Minimum lease payments under NTREHERERE
operating leases in respect of: K
Land and buildings T REF 2,137 2,733
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEE 600 550
Employee benefits expense (including EERMNHY (BRES
Directors’ remuneration (note 12))**: B (FdaE12))** :
Wages, salaries, allowances ITE&E - M - 28k
and benefits in kind NEDN = 14,357 15,770
Equity-settled share option AR AR < IR 106 268
arrangements
Pension scheme contributions RINBET IR
(defined contribution schemes) (REHEZETED 241 1,790
Severance payments B S 423 85
15,127 17,913
Foreign exchange losses, net b i 518558 42 29
Impairment allowances on trade FEWBR R 2 R ERE
receivables (note 22) (FfFzE22) 827 222
Net loss on de-consolidation BUBM B A Rl4R e AR
of subsidiaries (note 36) Z B85 (M15E36) 10,555 =
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWZE - BE K&
plant and equipment IH Bz W - (1,170)
Research and development costs# 7T K B A AR # 310 1,770
Bank interest income HRITHEUA (64) (134)
Investment income FEWA (152) (502)
Fair value (gain)/loss on an investment WEWFEZ ATHEE
property (note 17) (Uez5) /#5418 (MIEE17) (388) 408

REMZERERAT
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31 March 2016 —F—~NF=H=+—H

11.LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued)

1. BRFEATE ] =)

The cost of services provided includes depreciation and

employee benefits expense totaling approximately HK$822,000
for the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: HK$2,098,000), which is
also included in the respective total amount separately disclosed

above.

# The research and development costs for the year include
approximately HK$310,000 (2015: HK$1,770,000) relating to
employee benefits expense for research and development

activities, which is also included in the employee benefits

expense separately disclosed above.

At 31 March 2016, the Group had no material forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the pension

schemes in future years (2015: Nil).

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration comprises payment by the Group to

Directors of the Company in connection with the management

of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries. The

remuneration of each Director for the years ended 31 March

2016 and 2015 is set out below:

* HE_Z-RFZA=1+—HLLEE
ZRIEKABIENE KESR&EFF
S H#7822,000/8 T (ZFE— R F -
2,098,00087T) * ZEXATFEFTA
B TR BRBRER -

#  AFEMRAFASEKABIEEAEE
THREEFAEEHEBE 2 EERT
1 49310,0008 L (ZE— A F :
1,770,000 7T) * ZEATREFTA
BT BERE 2 EEEFFSZS -

R-ZFE-—RF=ZA=1+—H  ~5&E
IR W E R FAH BIRFE R
HEKREASIHR (ZF—0F  8) -

12.EEME

EEZWEPEAESEREIRFESE
BARRIMEWNBARZEEMMES
N2HIE - TREINEEZESREER
TE-RERZE—RAFE=ZHA=1—
HItFEZME

2016 2015
—E-REF —ZT—0F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT F&TT
Fees e 394 300
Other emoluments: HEls
Salaries, allowances and e EMEEYR =S
benefits in kind 3,717 8,138
Equity-settled share RS 2 B
option arrangements 38 184
Pension scheme contributions RIRBETEIMH R 87 58
3,842 8,380
4,236 8,680
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31 March 2016 —F—~NF=H=+—H

12.DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continuvest  12. EEEE @0

In the prior years, three Directors were granted share options RBEEE  —RESHRASER
in respect of their services to the Group under the share option AR MR A A 7 B AR i 51 21 1%
schemes of the Company, further details of which are set out BERRE - E— BT IRE N M KR
in note 32 to the financial statements. The fair value of such 32 ZEEREZ ATFEBEIINE
options which has been recognised in the statement of profit or LHEEE  YEAEBHETER
loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of RER > MIIAARAFEETBHRER S
grant and the amount included in the financial statements for BEMALLEEMESEEERNA -
the current year is included in the above Directors’ remuneration
disclosures.
(a) Independent non-executive Directors (a) BYFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive Directors FAXNTEIIFERITEET A
during the year were as follows: BT :
2016 2015
—E-KE —T-hHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong MESESRE (RZZE—1F
(appointed on 25 June 2015) NAZTHRAEERME) 102 —
Mr. Xu Xiaoping RINFEERE (RZZ—RF
(appointed on 25 June 2015) NAZTHAERMT) 102 —
Mr. Poon Yan Wai BLERE (RZZ2—hF
(appointed on 8 October 2015) +ANBEZE) 68 —
Ms. Wong Chi Yan 5Lt (R=ZT—hHE
(appointed on 25 June 2015 and NAZTHAEZRER
resigned on 8 October 2015) RZZT—RF+AN\BET) 35 &
Mr. Tam Chun Wan BIRESLE (RZZ—HF
(resigned on 17 July 2015) +A+tEHEE) 29 100
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine HARZE (R=ZE—AF
(resigned on 17 July 2015) +A+tHEE) 29 100
Ms. Lai May Lun REmMEZE (RZT—RF
(resigned on 17 July 2015) + ATt H#E) 29 100
394 300
There were no other emoluments payable to the FRIWEEMEN TBILIENT
independent non-executive Directors during the year EEvMe (ZT—hF: |-
(2015: Nil).

REMZERERAT
—E-AREER
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31 March 2016 —F—~NF=H=+—H

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

12.EEME @)

(b) Executive Directors and non-executive (b) HITEERKHITESE
Directors
The emoluments of each executive and non-executive BT RIERNTES R EFENTT
Director and the chief executive officer were as follows: BZMEnT
2016
—E-RF
Salaries,
allowances Pension  Equity-settied
and benefits scheme  share option Total
Fee inkind  contributions  arrangements  remuneration
428 B WEREE
ik RENAE SHEME  ZERERE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén TEn TEn THn TEn
Executive Directors: H1EZ:
Mr. Xu Zhigang fElLE (R-2-1F - 816 5 - 821
(appointed on 25 June, 2015) NAZTRREEfR)
Mr. Yeung Yiu Bong, Anthony FEALE (WZF—1E
(appointed on 26 February, 2016) ZRZTARERA) - 7 - - 1
Ms. Ding Pingying THERT (W=5-1F
(appointed on 25 June, 2015 and NAZTRREELR - 216 5 - 281
resigned on 26 February 2016) RZE-~EZAZTAREf)
M. Yip Heon Ping EmTas
(resigned on 17 July, 2015) (R=F-RELATLAEM) - 1,102 30 19 1,151
Mr. Han Jun RERE - 459 17 - 476
- 2,130 57 19 2,806
Non-executive Directors: FHnES:
Mr. Chen Weixi BRAE (R-2-1F
(appointed on 25 June, 2015) NAZTRREZE) - 306 - - 306
M. Yip Heon Keung Erts
(redesignated from an executive (RZZ-1F
Director with effect tATtA
from 17 July, 2015) HHnESHE) - 681 30 19 730
Ms. Li Luyi PR—IL
(resigned on 17 July, 2015) (R=F-RFLATLAEM) - - - - -
- 987 30 19 1,036
- 37 87 38 3,842

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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12. EEM € @)
(b) HITEERFEHITES

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive Directors and non-executive

Directors (continued) (&)
2015
—T—RHF
Salaries,
allowances Pension  Equity-settled
and benefits scheme share option Total
Fee inkind contributions ~ arrangements remuneration
e i WiEREE
2k REWHE et ERERS et
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
TETL Thn ThxL Tix TEn
Executive Directors: H1E%:
M. Yip Heon Ping EnTEs = 4140 18 % 4250
Mr. Yip Heon Keung®* Eming: - 3604 18 9 3804
Mr. Han Jun BERL
(redesignated from a non-executive (R=Z-RE-A%A
Director on 5 February 2015) mIERTEEAN) — = = = -
— 7834 36 184 8,054
Non-executive Directors: FHnES:
Mr. Mah Yong Sun SEHLE (M-2-RF
(retired on 6 August 2014) NBABET) - - - - -
M. Li Luyi PRt
(redesignated from an executive (R=F-R%-AAA
Director on 5 February 2015) BHTESEE) = 304 2 = 3%
— 304 2 — 326
— 8,138 58 184 8,380

¥ TR—LGINR=_FB-—FHE_H
AHBEARARABEENTELZ
Bk  AABlEFEMBREL
ERAARREZEREFEHTE
2% BZZT—hAF=HAA
HABAERK °

Following the resignation of Ms. Li Luyi as the chief
executive officer of the Company on 5 February 2015, Mr.
Yip Heon Keung, the Chairman of the Company, assumed
the post of the acting chief executive officer with effect from
5 February 2015.

FA - BEEEREXFABTHEEM
ezt (ZE—0F: 8 F
A ARETERZERREAREER
SHREEXNIE - UIERRSIKSE
MARE B H R INAAREE R 2 228
SKIEDRERE -

REMZERERAT
—E-AREER

There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2015: Nil).
During the year, no emoluments have been paid by the Group
to the Directors or any of the five highest paid employees as an
inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as compensation
for loss of office.
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13.EBBEEHEER

FALEBRSHEEREME (ZF
—hF WA BEF AMEFRER
EXEA AR 128 - FREK
=% (ZT—h%F: =R) FEERR

13.FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2015: two) Directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 12 to the financial statements above. Details of the
remuneration of the remaining three (2015: three) non-director,

highest paid employees for the year were as follows: FEEBZMSFFBWT
2016 2015
—E-REF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FHBT
Salaries, allowances and e EER
benefits in kind BEYH = 1,114 2,200
Equity-settled share option DRSS
arrangements EiREL — 65
Pension scheme contributions IRREFTEIMER 17 83
1,131 2,348

The number of non-Director, highest paid employees whose

MEeBRATARNZFESTH=HE

remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: BABLT :

2016 2015
ZE-RF —T—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FHET
HK$1 to HK$500,000 18702 500,000 % 7C 1 —
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 7T 2 1,000,000 57T 1 2

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 1,500,000 47T —
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T 2 3,500,000 87T — =
2 8

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R IR AR M T

31 March 2016 —F—~NF=H=+—H

14.INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for the year ended 31 March 2016. Hong Kong
profits tax has not been provided as the Group did not generate
any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the years ended
31 March 2015. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries or
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

14. TEFHBEX

BHE_ZT-—RF=ZA=+—HILHF
B - BENBR IR MG BRTUE
Z165%tH - IR AEBEREBEZ
T-RAF=A=T—"HIEFEARALE
BEEANEBELEZERBERN
WA A K BB RSN 2 B - Hp
bl 2 FE AR B B T AR R AN £R B 48 &
EBMEZBERKBEREE 2R
TTIREFTERIA

2016 2015
—E-REF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT FBT
Current — Hong Kong: BNHA — & -

Charge for the year FRZH 8 —

Current — Elsewhere: BPER — HAetbih[R -
Charge for the year FRZH — 6
Deferred (note 30) EIE (FiEES0) — 1,394
Total tax charged for the year FRFIES HE%E 8 1,400

REMZERERAT
—E-AREER
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14.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to loss before tax at

the statutory tax rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company

and its principal subsidiaries operate to the tax charge at the

14. FR8HBBE X ()

RBRARARBREERHEARK
LRERDERER EERERAEZK
T B B 18 2 B TR S ) B R R A R AT

effective tax rate, is as follows: B2BEZ B2 EHEROT
2016 2015
—B-AE —E—IfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
Loss before tax BRI EE (31,351) (28,307)
Tax credit at the Hong Kong BREBNEHNE16.5%
profits tax rate of 16.5% (ZE—HF 1 16.5%)
(2015: 16.5%) FTEZRIEE S (2,278) (2,016)
Tax credit at the Mainland China LR BIAHEE R 25.0%
statutory tax rate of 25.0% —T—AF :25.0%)
(2015: 25.0%) FTEZTRIEE S (4,387) (4,022)
Lower applicable tax rate enjoyed AEEZAZREKEBRHRE
by the Group — 72
Income not subject to tax BAEZRBBA (125) (309)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR A 3,051 1,990
Tax losses not recognised RIEMER 2 TR IBEE 3,747 5,685
Total tax charged at the Group’s EASBERBERGTE 2B
effective rate S B 8 1,400

Beijing Xin Tong Le Sou Technology Co., Ltd. was approved

to qualify for the “Software Enterprise Scheme” for a five-year

period from 13 June 2011 to 31 December 2015 and enjoyed an

exemption of PRC corporate income tax for the first two years
and a 50% reduction for the following three years.

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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15.L0SS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic loss per share amounts is based
on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company of approximately HK$31,359,000 (2015:
HK$29,707,000), and the weighted average numbers of ordinary
shares of 890,864,168 (2015: 767,951,438) in issue during the
year.

No diluted loss per share are calculated as there were no
dilutive potential equity shares in existence as at 31 March 2016
and 2015. Hence, the basic and diluted loss per share were the
same for both years.

15. KA 7]

SEERFE AR

]J

(EST

ﬁﬁ

BRERNBEDIREARRA R L BEZR
A AE(LF A E B 431,359,000
Bt (—F — HF 29,707,000

L) RFERE BTERBMNETFY
#890,864,168f% ( — T — A F:
767,951,438 %) 51 & -

HRZZE—RFEFRZFE-—AF=H

EJF—EHI%@E%%%E&HXTE 5
AtEBREEEE - Bt - mE

FRZBRERREGEIEER -

REMBREZERAERAR
—E-XREFR
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16.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16.¥1% - BMENRRE

2016
=
Office and
computer
Land and equipment,
building in furniture
Mainland and fixture
China Leasehold WAZR Motor
REEREZ  improvements ElRME vehicles Total
IHREF  HENERE BRR#EE RE b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHR TAL TEAL TEL THT
Cost: AR
At 1 April 2015 RZE-RFNA—A 1,385 1,373 12,231 3,650 18,639
Additions RE - 154 241 - 395
Acquisition of subsidiaries Wk B LA - - 1,637 - 1,637
Disposals & - (61) (297) - (358)
De-consolidation of subsidiaries  FUBHBARIGA AR - (1,321) (9,466) (3,466) (14,253)
Exchange realignment i - (51) (854) (184) (1,089)
At 31 March 2016 W= F=A=+-H 1,385 9% 3,492 - 497
Accumulated depreciation ZHARERAE:
and impairment:
At 1 April 2015 R-E-RENA—H 351 937 12,004 2,996 16,288
Provided for the year FREE 35 296 499 284 1,114
Disposals & - (61) (297) — (358)
De-consolidation of subsidiaries ~ FUEMB L RlZA AR - (1,115) (9,371) (2,609) (13,095)
Exchange realignment AR - (29) (345) (671) (1,045)
At 31 March 2016 RZZ—F
=A=t-A 386 2 2,490 - 2,904
Carrying amount: SREE :
At 31 March 2016 RZE—$=A=1-H 999 66 1,002 - 2,067
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16.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  16. %1% - BB RRE @

(continued)

2015
—E—RF
Office and
computer
Land and equipment,
building in furniture and
Mainland fixtures
China Leasehold WAZR Motor
PEERSLZ  improvements BHRE vehicles Total
THEEFT  HENERE BRREE "E &t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThEL Fhr T FEL TEL
Cost: HAE
At 1 April 2014 RZE-EFNA—A 1,385 1,820 12,458 5,344 21,007
Additions hE — — 27 — 27
Disposals e -~ (450) (272) (1,700) (2,422)
Exchange realignment iR -~ 3 18 6 27
At 31 March 2015 R-E-RF=A=+—A 1,385 1,373 12,231 3,650 18,639
Accumulated depreciation ZAHERAE
and impairment:
At 1 April 2014 RZZ-MEMA-A 316 1,106 11,950 4,262 17,634
Provided for the year FREE 35 279 309 430 1,053
Disposals e — (480) (272) (1,700) (2422)
Exchange realignment B iR — 2 17 4 23
At 31 March 2015 RZE2-HF=A=1-R 351 937 12,004 2,99 16,268
Carrying amount: RAEE:
At 31 March 2015 RZZ-n¥=A=1-H 1034 436 227 654 2,351
The Group’s leasehold building is held under a medium term REBZHEEBFUARBBELOEE
lease and is situated in Mainland China. PR B A o

RERRZERBR AR
—E-XRFEER
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17.INVESTMENT PROPERTY

17. REWZE

2016 2015
—EB-AE —ZT—IfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FiET

Carrying amount: IREE
At 1 April R A—H 4,367 4,767
Fair value adjustment N EERAR

(notes 9 and 11) (FFEE9 K2 11) 388 (408)
Exchange realignment HE 5, 8 BE 77 8
De-consolidation of subsidiaries (note 36)  BUAMIB A &4RA AR (K15£36) (4,832) —
At 31 March R=A=+—H — 4,367

The Group’s investment property is held under a long term lease
and its address is { BIIL USRI R R B PIINART 7 3655 bt 2557 18
7E 1870807 (Unit 807, Level 7, Entrance 1, Building 25, No.
Yi 36, Dongzhimenwai Street, Dongcheng District, Beijing, the
PRC, for identification purpose only) which is a residential unit.

The Group’s investment property was revalued on 31 December
2015 by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory
Limited, an independent firm of professional qualified valuers,
not connected to the Group who have appropriate qualifications
and recent experience in the valuation of similar properties
in the relevant locations. The valuation was arrived at by
using direct comparison method by making reference to the
comparable properties on a price per square meter basis
using market data which is publicly available. The Group has
determined that the highest and best use of the investment
property at 31 December 2015 would be for rental purpose. For
strategic reasons, the property is not being used in this manner.

At each financial year end the Directors assess property
valuations movements when compared to the prior year
valuation report.

Fair value adjustment of the investment property is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. All gains or losses
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year are arisen from the property held at the end of the reporting
period. There has been no change from the valuation technique
used in the prior year.
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17.INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 17. BEWZ @)
Details of the Group’s investment property and information RZE—RF=ZA=+—80" ' &x5H
about the fair value hierarchy at 31 March 2016 are as follows: REMEZFBEREBEATEEER
BEZ2ERAT :
Fair value at
31 March
2016
RZE—RE
=A=+—H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
2 AFMHE 5B £-F el
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FEL T BT
Investment property in Beijing RIERZIRE Y - — — —
Fair value at
31 March
2015
RZZT—HEF
EA=+—H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ZAFEE EF—E E ol E=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET BT
Investment property in Beijing RIER 2B 4,367 — 4,367 =
During the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, there were no HE-_Z2—XR"EFEk_Z—HF=H
transfer of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level =+—RLFEF EBHEZELZ
2 and no transfer into or out of Level 3. MBI RBEEBATFEBEZGTE TR

EHARBEESIE -

As at 31 March 2015, the investment property with carrying amount RZZE—RF=A=1T—8  KHEEY
of approximately HK$4,367,000 was pledged as security for a loan 4,367,000 8 L2 IR EYECER - 1E
granted to the Group by an independent third party (note 28). RENE=FRAASEREERZE

1R (MI5E28) o

As at 31 March 2016, there was no investment property was RZZE—R"F=ZA=+—8 " HEF
pledged as security for a loan granted to the Group by an MR EMEEER  ERBEYE=H
independent third party. MAEEREER 2R ©

REMZERERAT
—E-AREER
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18.f{ B A RIFF1E

R-B-AFZA=+—0 AQH

18. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

March 2016 are as follows: FTEMBARZFRAOT -
Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/ of issued of equity
registration and ordinary share/ attributable to
operations  registered capital the Company
Name SR ERE BRILER/ N[ Principal activities
£ EEBY AfMER 2 HE BEADL TEEHR
(2016 and 2015)
(ZE-RER
—E-RF)
Lighting Storm Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands USD50,000 100%, — Investment holding
RERAES 50,000%7T REEKR
Meteor Storm Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands USD50,000 100%, — Investment holding
RERAES 50,000%7T REEKR
Meteor Investment (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%, Investment holding
BE 10,0007 REZR
Mastery Jewellery Co. Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%, Investment holding
EERERR LA BE 10,000 7T REEKR
ZERAER (RY) BRAR PRC/Mainland China HK$17,000,000 100%, —  The design, research
mE/hEAM, 17,000,000 and development,
wholesale and retail of
jewellery and related
ancillary business
RE ARG
e #tE - TE
RABRERD
Prosten Medical Investment Limited British Virgin Islands USD50,000 100%, — Investment holding
RBRUES 50,000% 7T RERK
Prosten Medical Health Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%, — Investment holding
&R 10,0007 REER
Prosten E-Business Investment Limited British Virgin Islands USD50,000 100%, — Investment holding
RBRUES 50,000% 7T RERK

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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18. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES 18. fft B A Bl 5E1E (@)

(continued)

Place of Nominal value Percentage

incorporation/ of issued of equity

registration and ordinary share/ attributable to

operations  registered capital the Company
Name Ea A3 1) ERTLER KARER Principal activities
8 EEE EMEAZEE BRADL TEEH

(2016 and 2015)

(ZB-RER

—B-%F)
KATREEZERAF PRC/Mainland China RMB8,000,000 100%, — hEEfElE - B
B/ HRER  AR8,000,0007T (TaB&ERE)
Prosten Healthcare Finance & Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%, — Investment holding
Investment Limited B 10,0007 7T REAEK
Wing Tai Industrial Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands USD50,000 100%, — Investment holding
RBRUEE 50,0003 7T REER
Wing Tai Industrial Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100%, — Investment holding
KREZRERRAF BB 2B REER
YT REREHARRAR PRC/Mainland China HK$1,000,000 100%, — EXRERERA

B/ B 1,000,000
SZ Enterprise Union Finance Limited Hong Kong  HK$1,000,000.00 100%, — Money lending
REBE N EEFERATR &%  1,000,000.00/ 7T
Prosten Wealth Investment Limited British Virgin Islands USD50,000 100%, — [nvestment holding
RBRUEE 50,0003 7T REEKR
Prosten (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$21,025 100%, 100% Investment holding
Hong Kong 21,025% 7T REER
RERTEE/BE

Prosten Technology Co. Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100%, 100% Investment holding
RENBRBR AT BB 1,000,000 7T REBER
Prolink Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$5 100%, 100% Investment holding
FARBRBER AT BB 57T REER

REMBREZERAERAR

—E-XRFEER
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18. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES

18. B A Bl @

(continued)

Place of Nominal value Percentage

incorporation/ of issued of equity

registration and ordinary share/ attributable to

operations  registered capital the Company
Name EMAL/ EMK ERTLER KATES Principal activities
A EELE HfMER 2 HE BRADL TEEH

(2016 and 2015)

(ZB-RER

—B-1F)
Worldly Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%, 100% Investment holding
MEMBR R EE 10,000/ 7T REER
Welltop Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100%, 100% Investment holding
B REBR A B 1,000/87C REER
Beijing Xin Tong Le Sou Technology Co Ltd.* PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100%, 100% Provision of wireless

ERERERBARDR

* Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC
Law.

Except for Prosten (BVI) Limited, Lighting Storm Holdings
Limited, Prosten Medical Investment Limited, Prosten E-Business
Investment Limited, Prosten Healthcare Finance & Investment
Limited and Prosten Wealth Investment Limited, all other
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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R B GH EIR AR
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS

19.H-EESHERE

2016 2015

—E-RF —T—hfF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHER FHTT

Club debentures, at cost (note (a)) EES - B (e (a)) 419 832
Unlisted equity securities, at fair value TR ES -

(note (b)) BAFEE (M:E (b))

Upon acquisition at cost RUEE B 2 AR 15,000 =

Fair value adjustment during the period ~ EIRZ A FEBEAZ 6,760 ==

21,760 —

22,179 832

At the end of the reporting period, club debentures were stated
at cost as the Directors are of the opinion that their fair values
cannot be measured reliably because the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is so significant. The Group does not intend to
dispose of them in the near future.

On 23 October 2015, Meteor Storm Holdings Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, has entered into agreement
with Hong Kong Media Group Limited, a shareholder of Hong
Kong Net TV Limited which incorporated under the laws of
British Virgin Islands with the limited liability to acquire 6% of the
ordinary share capital in Hong Kong Net TV Limited, a company
is principally engaged in the business of provision of advertising
and consultancy services. The directors of the Company do not
believe that the Group is able to exercise significant influence
over Hong Kong Net TV Limited as the other 94% of the ordinary
share capital is held by one shareholder, who also manages
the day-to-day operations of that company. The acquisition
transaction was completed on 21 December 2015. No dividend
was entitled to the Group during the year ended 31 March 2016.

The above unlisted equity securities was revalued on 31 March
2016 by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, an independent firm
of professionally qualified valuers, not connected to the Group
who have appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the
valuation of similar equity securities.

REHR - PIEFIZRATIRR
RARAFEEGFT 2AEHERE
R BERBAFEEAREASERT
B - AEFEBEERTAR KRB EZSE
(A

R-Z—HAE+A=-+=H  &&
Z & & M B A 5 Meteor Storm
Holdings Limited B 827 /5 718 A 4%
ERAERARZ —BRFELEE
SEARAE (REEBELHSE
BIFEMAK L 2 BRAT]) 513 ek -
LA B SRR EEER S ARAR
(FERERBEEREARBEES
2R 6% ZEBBRA o A A AE
RAREBEZHBSEREEE
REBBRAMTIEEATE SN AR
Hith94% 2 ZMIRATI B — B IRR
A wBRENEEZARZARE
B BWBRIN - —hF+=
AZ+—HZEK - #HEZT—RF=
A=+—HIFE  A&BEREIK

BEE o

EXOE ETERE SRR EAR
AR (BEAEEYEBE 2B LA
BREXGEN BEAEERER
RIS B RS AT 2
REB)RN-_T—NF=A=+—HE
fi o
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20. GOODWILL 20. 5 &
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZET-hHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Cost: RS :
At 1 April REA—H 188 188
De-consolidation of subsidiaries (note 36)  EUAMIEB A 54ra ARR (K17E36) (188) —
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries REBEEHB AR 3,908 —
At 31 March R=A=+—8H 3,908 188
Accumulated impairment losses: KERESSE :
At 1 April A A —A (188) (188)
De-consolidation of subsidiaries (note 36)  BUBMIB R R4RA AR (FI:E36) 188 —
At 31 March R=A=+—8H — (188)
Carrying amounts: BRMEIE :
At 31 March R=A=+—~H 3,908 —
2016 2015
—E-RE i
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHET FAT
Mastery Jewellery Co. Limited EEKREFRAT 2,914 —
Wing Tai Industrial Holdings Limited Wing Tai Industrial
Holdings Limited 994 —
3,908 —

Impairment Tests for Cash-generating
Units Containing Goodwill

Goodwill acquired has been allocated for impairment testing
purposes to the following cash generating units (“CGU”):

— Mastery Jewellery Co. Limited
— Wing Tai Industrial Holdings Limited

The Group test goodwill annually for impairment, or more
frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be
impaired.

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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20. GOODWILL (continued) 20. %]_% (%)

Impairment Tests for Cash-generating
Units Containing Goodwill (continued)
Note:

Mastery Jewellery Co. Limited

The recoverable amount of the Mastery Jewellery Co. Limited CGU is
determined based on the value-in-use calculation under the income
approach, which includes the discounted cash flows sourced from
the financial budgets approved by the management covering a 5-year
period, and the post-tax discount rate of approximately 15% that
reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the Mastery Jewellery Co. Limited CGU. The Group
tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are
indications that goodwill might be impaired.

Cash flow projections during the budget period are based on the
expected revenue from existing and potential customers throughout the
budget period. The cash flows beyond that five-year period have been
extrapolated using a steady 3% per annum growth rate. The growth rate
does not exceed the long term average growth rate for the market.

The recoverable amount of the Mastery Jewellery Co. Limited CGU
has been referenced to the valuation report prepared by Peak Vision
Appraisals Limited, an independent professional valuer.

As the recoverable amount was calculated to be exceed the carrying
amount of CGU to which goodwill is allocated, no impairment loss was
recognised.

Wing Tai Industrial Holdings Limited

The recoverable amount of the Wing Tai Industrial Holdings Limited
CGU is determined based on the value-in-use calculation under the
income approach, which includes the discounted cash flows sourced
from the financial budgets approved by the management covering a
5-year period, and the post-tax discount rate of approximately 15%
that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the Wing Tai Industrial Holdings Limited CGU. The
Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there
are indications that goodwill might be impaired.

Cash flow projections during the budget period are based on the
expected revenue from existing and potential customers throughout the
budget period. The cash flows beyond that five-year period have been
extrapolated using a steady 10% per annum growth rate. The growth
rate does not exceed the long term average growth rate for the market.

As the recoverable amount was calculated to be exceed the carrying
amount of CGU to which goodwill is allocated, no impairment loss was
recognised.

BEBEZREELENZ
BB &)

s

EERBEARAA

EEREARARNREELAEM ZATRE
SRIIRBRAZH ZEREBAESR
BT EEREBEREIEZDFHMEM
BEEZFRERER - MBRERFTRERLY
156% RRBEEFHIZHERRRAEBEEREE
EREARARARECELBNFAERRZ
AHh - AREESFHHBRETRENH -
B RN E A BEE R ER - BIE
SRR EURE -

NEEMMZ RSB ER B AR
R 2 R E RIEER P 2 B 28 T 1
i« BBT M2 RERE FMEE 3%
FHEERE - RERELRBLETSZ
R HRE -

EEREARARREELEM 2D
SRS EBIERGEMREZFEAR
RARELZ AEREMETE °

EREFEZAIRE S RER LD e
ZHRSEEBEMN 2 IREE - B EERR
BR5IE

Wing Tai Industrial Holdings Limited

Wing Tai Industrial Holdings Limited 8 &
EE Bz ESEDRERAEZR 2
TREENEFAEE  BEREEREE
HEZ DFHRRzHRBREZNRZES
T 1R 3T 3R K 4 16% S B IR B T 35
5 ¥ 0 [ & B & ¥ Wing Tai Industrial
Holdings Limited 3R & EE A B AL FF B R 2
Al - AEEFFHEHEETRENR
g AP REREEAREERER - AJE
SREAISURE

REEHRRE 2R ERBRANDERBERE
HRZRERBERP 2B KRamIE
te BRAFHZRSRERMAERE 10%
MFIRREEE - ZREXWREBHTS
ZERBTFIEIERE

EREHEZARmeEBLES R EE
ZHSELBMNZIREE  WIERERR
B -

REMZERERAT
—E-AREER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R IR AR M T

31 March 2016 —F—~NF=H=+—H

20. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment Tests for Cash-generating
Units Containing Goodwill (continued)

Note: (continued)

The key assumptions used in the value in use calculations for the CGU

are as follows:

Budgeted market share

Budgeted gross margin

The values assigned to the assumption
reflect past experience, except for the
growth factor, which is consistent with
the directors’ estimation of the revenue
from existing and potential customers.
The directors believe that planned
revenue growth per year for the next
five years is reasonably achievable.

Average gross margins achieved in
the period immediately before the
budget period, increased for expected
efficiency improvements. This reflects
past experience.

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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A
21.INVENTORIES 21. 7 E
2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT T
Raw material |G 223 =
Finished goods e 15,043 —
15,266 —
=
22. TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. R AR =X
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—1F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT T
Trade receivables, gross R BR SR AR R 2,275 6,311
Impairment allowances BERE (1,491) (1,337)
Loans receivables e E TR 26,078 —
Trade receivables, net JE U BR TS 58 26,862 4,974

RERRZERBR AR
—E-XRFEER
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Loans receivables

Loans receivables represent loans to individuals which are
unsecured and carry interest at 10% per annum. At 31 March
2016, all loans receivable have lending terms of 6 months but
contained a repayable on demand clause. The aggregated
principal amount outstanding at the end of the reporting period
is HK$26,000,000 and the balance includes interest receivable
of HK$78,000.

All loans receivables are with average credit terms of 180 days
(since the loans were granted) and are not yet past due at the
end of the reporting period (average overdue was 0 days since
maturity date). The Group had reviewed the recoverability of the
loan receivables and the Group has not provided impairment
loss on these loans receivables.

The Group’s trade receivables, which generally have credit
terms of one month to three months (2015: one month to three
months) pursuant to the provisions of the relevant contracts, are
recognised based on services rendered, and money lended
and carried at the original invoice amount, and an estimate of
impairment of trade receivables is made and deducted when
collection of the full amount is no longer probable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has significant
concentration of credit risk as approximately 49% (2015: 81%)
of the balance represented a receivable from a customer
with the largest trade receivable at the year end. The trade
receivables balances as at 31 March 2016 contributed by the
five largest customers of the year was 100% (2015: 100%).
Concentration of credit risk is managed by control over credit
term over individual customer. Trade receivables are unsecured
and non-interest-bearing.

The loan receivables outstanding as at 31 March 2016 are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, net of

impairment allowances, based on the invoice date, goods were

22. FEURBRFR ()

ARE B RUSR (EINRBER A MR
ERZAN  HEEMNMEHLFR) 2

sold and money lended, is as follows: BREROTIAT -
2016 2015
AL —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBR FiET
Within 3 months =EAR 26,862 2,364
4 to 6 months mENEA — 806
7 to 12 months +E+EA — 1,198
Over 1 year BB —F — 606
Trade receivables, net R R FUF RR 26,862 4,974

The movements in the Group’s impairment allowances of trade

receivables are as follows:

REERYSRFRER B EFNT

2016 2015

—E-REF —T-hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHIT

At 1 April REA—H 1,337 1,114
De-consolidation of subsidiaries BUBM B R RlERE AR (719) -
Impairment losses recognised (note 11) B ERRERE (MizE11) 827 222
Exchange realignment HEE 5, 5 B 46 1
At 31 March E= 15 Sei—E 1,491 el

The above allowances for impairment of trade receivables

are allowances for individually impaired trade receivables

with carrying amounts before allowances of approximately
HK$1,491,000 (2015: HK$1,337,000). The individually impaired
trade receivables are considered to be less likely to recover

by management after considering the credit quality of those

individual customers based on their settlement history.

i EBERR 2 BERERTERE
BB RUARREL 2 B - HBER
ZEMAEEAA1,491,0008 T (==
— A : 1,337,000/ L) - &E EZ
ZEPBEFERBAZLEREZEE
Bx% TEERASTANAEKE:Z
ZEBIEREEUER o

REMBREZERAERAR
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivables that are not

considered to be impaired, based on the due date, is as follows:

22. FEURBRFR ()

PRAR S B RUE 2 AN 58 B FE WR R AR
BRHA ZBRE DT

2016 2015

A —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FHTT

Not yet past due 3 7 460 B 26,862 779
Past due but not impaired: BEMERBE -

1 to 3 months past due BEEi—=={@A — 1,829

4 to 6 months past due B AN = ] (@ A — 844

7 to 12 months past due BEaitE=+ @A — 1,037

Past due for over 1 year BB R—F — 485

Trade receivables, net JEU R FUF 58 26,862 4,974

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to

independent customers that have a good repayment record

with the Group. Based on past experience, the Directors are

of the opinion that no impairment allowance is necessary in

respect of these balances as there has not been a significant

change in credit quality and the balances are still considered

fully recoverable.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit

enhancements over these balances.

PROSTEN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

LiAEN

7]
:I:}-,I

23. VAN FIE - AT E R EHAb

2016 2015

—EB-RE —ET—hHF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHExT FET

Prepayments TR RUR 449 374
Deposits and other receivables Al M E b U FRIA 3,727 2,899
4,176 3,273
Less: Current portion B RENER D (4,130) (3,132)
Non-current portion FERENEL 46 141
24.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 24. & &fﬁ% ZEYRE

PLEDGED DEPOSITS BHEFMR

2016 2015

—E—REF —ET—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT T

Cash and bank balances e MIRTT4ER 28,661 1,778
Time deposits TE B R 100 —
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREeEEY 28,761 1,778

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
and time deposits held by subsidiaries of the Company
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately HK$2,813,000
(2015: HK$1,614,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

AR EHBA AR RS HRUARE
FHEZH S RIBITEHBIARERER
# 528130008 L (=T — A F:
1,614,000/ 7C) - AR TA B H K
BAEMER  HARBEP B A Z N
[EERIEN - ARLE SERMGE
EEHT AEEEREZREREE
TINER ZHEB 2 RITIHARE KB

REMEE o
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24.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits were made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit rates.
The deposits at banks are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

25.DUE TO NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Amounts due to non-executive Directors are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.

26. TRADE PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables, based on the
month in which the services were rendered, is as follows:

2L B RBEEEYRE
EHER @

RITFEFRRETHRTERNREE
ZFBMEGE - BHEMERNE
HAH—BE=ZEATTEF BFLXE
BERZRSFTEME  WIREHEZ
FHMEERANEREE - RIITZE
RIFERANOHEESNREELEAE
BRUFZIRIT -

BNFATES 2HE

RN EMITER ZRAREER - 1
AHALE B B REFHEER o

FEAS BRFX

AEERIBRERS A D ZEMER
BRER DT T -

25

26

2016 2015
=F-RF — R

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Over 1 year Bl —F 2,703 9,713
27.0THER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 27. HAbE RO K BT RUE
2016 2015

—E-REF —E-hE

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Other payables H A e ERIE 4,048 3,487
Accruals FERT IR 4,288 8,280
8,336 11,767
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28. BT EEE

28.INTEREST-BEARING BORROWING,

SECURED

At 31 March 2015, the Group had a secured borrowing with
remaining balance of approximately HK$1,125,000 which is
secured by the Group’s investment property with carrying
amount of approximately HK$4,367,000 (note 17). The secured
borrowing is interest bearing at 8.5% per annum and repayable
within one year. The borrowing was fully settled during the year
ended 31 March 2016.

29.DUE TO AN ULTIMATE HOLDING

COMPANY/DE-CONSOLIDATED
SUBSIDIARIES

Amounts due to an ultimate holding company/de-consolidated
subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable
on demand.

30. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax asset and liability during the
year are as follows:

Deferred tax asset

Deferred tax asset arising from losses available for offsetting
against future taxable profits.

RZE—RAF=ZA=+—8" ' &x5H
BEEMEE ZHTEHR1,125000%
7T+ JY R BR TE (B 494,367,000 7T 2
REBREWZEEER (MEE17) 3%
EERBEERFBES5%TEREAR
—FRER - REBE-ZT— X F=A
=+—HILFE  ZEECEXHLE

Sty

BEBHERAS
Bias AR EA D2
%08

r?n

T RS A B BUE RS AR
BRRZHBRERR - TEFE R
AN BEREFFER

IEAEBLTH

EEMAEENRBERFERNZZEHMN
N

EEHIEEE
] FB R I 85 AR 2R B AR A s A1l 2 5 18 BT
EAZBEETRIBERE ©

N

2016 2015

—EB-R¥ —E—TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHER FHAIT

At 1 April RUA—H — 1,394
Deferred tax credited to profit or FRFFABRIR 2 RLEFRIE

loss during the year (note 14) (f=E14) - (1,394)

At 31 March RE NS — —

REMBREZERAERAR
—E-XREFR
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30. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liability

Deferred tax liability related to withholding taxes of unremitted

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. IEFERIE (@)

EEHHEE
BRI 2 S4B 2 I AT Bt 08
aff o

earnings.
2016 2015
= S
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
At 1 April REA—H 500 499
De-consolidation for subsidiaries (note 36)  EUSMIEB A &4RE AR (K1:£36) (302) —
Exchange realignment HE 5, 8 B (17) 1
At 31 March R=A=+—H 181 500

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the respective jurisdictions of the
foreign investors.

For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore
liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated after 1 January 2008.
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31.SHARE CAPITAL 31. R
Number of
shares Amounts
BREOEE -]
‘000 HK$'000
T FAT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary Shares: LB
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015, R-ZZE—WEMA—AB
1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016 —T-RF=ZA=t+—A8"
— HK$0.10 each —E-AFOA—HR
—E—XF=A=1+—H
— BREE0.108T 2,500,000 250,000
Issued and fully paid: EERTRARE :
At 1 April 2014 R-ZE—WFEMA—H 756,355 75,635
Exercise of share options nkdidibe 24,750 2,475
Placing of new shares (Note a) feE A% (fizta) 15,000 1,500
At 31 March 2015 R-—_Z—AF=A=+—H 796,105 79,610
Exercise of share options 1718 i it 3,138 314
Placings of new shares (Note b and ¢) EZ&E#1A% (Fistb Mc) 296,118 29,612
At 31 March 2016 R-ZE—ARE=HA=1+—H 1,095,361 109,536

REMBREZERAERAR
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31.SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note:

(@)

(b)

(c)

On 23 January 2015, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent, an independent third party. On
30 January 2015, the placing was completed. Pursuant to the
placing agreement, the Company issued a total of 15,000,000
ordinary shares with par value of HK$0.1 each at a price of
HK$0.27 each. The issued share capital of the Company was thus
increased from HK$78,110,500 to HK$79,610,500. The excess of
the placement proceeds over the nominal value of share capital
issued was credited as share premium.

On 31 July 2015, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with a placing agent, an independent third party. On 21 August
2015, the placing was completed. Pursuant to the placing
agreement, the Company issued a total of 136,270,000 ordinary
shares with par value of HK$0.1 each at a price of HK$0.43 each.
The issued share capital of the Company was thus increased from
HK$79,924,250 to HK$93,551,250. The excess of the placement
proceeds over the nominal value of share capital issued was
credited as share premium.

On 19 February 2016, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent, an independent third party.
On 10 March 2016, the placing was completed. Pursuant to the
placing agreement, the Company issued a total of 159,848,000
ordinary shares with par value of HK$0.1 each at a price of
HK$0.31 each. The issued share capital of the Company was thus
increased from HK$93,551,250 to HK$109,536,050. The excess
of the placement proceeds over the nominal value of share capital
issued was credited as share premium.
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(a)

R-ZE—RE—A=-+=8 AQF
H—FRERE (BLE=FH) 7L
Sl - BB EEFEE N T —1F
—A=1+H%EX - RIER S 5B

RABBRO27TB L ZERETA
$£15,000,000 % & & FEI1E0.1%8 T 2
LB o AR RIEBITIRARE A
78,110,5007% 7T & HN £ 79,610,500
T o BREEIHZ TS EB L e
AT E 2 ZRBE ABRFIVERDEE -

R-_ZE—RFLtA=+—0 ARQF
H—FRERE (BLE=7) L
BLEWHE - BEFHERZE—HF
NAZ+—BEK - BIBEREHE -
RNRARIEEA0.43 BT 2 BIKEITA
136,270,000 i & I EIE0.1/8 7T
ZEBE - ARARIEEITRAEMA
79,924,250 7% 7T 1% 10 £ 93,551,250
BT o LB FIE 2 TS RURMB T pTEE
TRAEEZ Z8E ARINERS &

E o
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—HBRERE (BLFE=F) 5]E
EE REFHERZZE—RF
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32.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company operates a share option scheme which is
currently in force and effect for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to
the success of the Group’s operations. The Company’s original
share option scheme was approved by the shareholders
on 7 March 2000 (the “2000 Scheme”), and was terminated
and replaced by a share option scheme approved by the
shareholders on 9 April 2002 (the “2002 Scheme”). The 2002
Scheme was terminated and replaced by a new share option
scheme approved by the shareholders on 5 August 2011 (the
“New Scheme”). The options granted under the 2000 Scheme,
which were not exercised or terminated or expired previously,
became expired on 21 August 2011.

A summary of the share option schemes is set out below:

(a) 2002 Scheme

The 2002 Scheme became effective for a period of 10
years commencing on 23 April 2002. Eligible participants
of the 2002 Scheme include all directors and employees
of the Group, suppliers, customers, consultants who
provided services to the Group, shareholders of the
subsidiaries of the Group and joint venture partners.
Under the 2002 Scheme, the Directors may, at their sole
discretion, grant to any eligible participants options
to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company. The
exercise period of the options granted is determinable
by the Directors, and commences after a certain vesting
period and ends in any event not later than 10 years from
the respective date when the share options are granted,
subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.
The 2002 Scheme was terminated and replaced by the
New Scheme with effect from 5 August 2011. The options
granted under the 2002 Scheme remain exercisable within
their respective exercise periods.

32. BB IR AEETE

RARIREBRMBREES N 2B
e BESEREEEHAEE Y
RINEEEH BB A BB HE -
BRER-_ZEZZEF=-ALHIEZR
NRIRBERESTE (2T F5t
2 ERERBRER ST =_FN
AnBiEZ —BERETE (=%
TFEE]D) B ZEFT_F51E
ERIEERERER-_TE——FENAR
Bt — B ERET S ([FE
2B RE-_ZTTTFHERH
BRBAERITE R I E M2 B
BERZT—F \AZ+—RHER °

BT E 2 BT

(a) —=ZZ-F5+3
R CFFEBE T FW
AZ+=BHRBER B8+
Fo T _FErEI2EEKS
HERRASEMEESENE
B #HE® BF  AXKERE
MR ERE - AEENE AR
ZRRREERERN - BB
TE_F5HE EF2ENS
REMEMEERSEER LR
IR - URBAQR 2 LB -
FIEREZTERRBESE
E o RETEBERERR - &
EERIBER THREARK LB
#2180 A B T EW
AR R AR L 2 RSCFTARRR ©
—EEFFHEERZE—F
AR R B RAFTET IR ©
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EREE BT BRI
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32.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 32. R AEFTE

(b) New Scheme (b) #&tEl
At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 5 EARRAR-_ZE——FN\HARA
August 2011 (the “2011 AGM”), an ordinary resolution was BITzBRRAFARE ([ZT——
passed by the shareholders to approve and adopt the FREBAFRE]) £ REBEB
New Scheme in place of the 2002 Scheme. —IHEEAER - B R

SFEILRR T T _F5E -

The New Scheme became effective for a period of gl g =T ——F\A+HH
10 years commencing on 10 August 2011. Eligible AR - REITF - FiEtElzE
participants of the New Scheme include all directors and ERSHEEBREASBMEES
employees of the Group, suppliers, customers, consultants NEE - #HER BF - BAKE
who provided services to the Group, shareholders of ERHERS 2 B - ANEE B
the subsidiaries of the Group and joint venture partners. RAZRREREERERHE R
Under the New Scheme, the Directors may, at their sole BT E - ERA2EMBRTE
discretion, grant to any eligible participants options to MEREBERDEERHBER
subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company at the R DRV REBLE L A HIEEZ
highest of (i) the closing price of shares of the Company FIgAmER LFSERIZER
on GEM as stated in the Exchange’s daily quotation sheet RARARROWKTE: (N BEE
on the date of the offer of grant; (ii) the average closing AR BER AR S BE R FT
price of the shares of the Company on GEM as stated in AMER LAY AR QA RIKRGDE
the Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading BlZER 2 FHWKTE - K(i) &
days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; RARMNEEZER (UEeE
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s share. The BE) REBARR LB - &
offer of a grant of options may be accepted within 21 days MEHBEREZNCHRABEL
from the date of the offer. A nominal consideration of HK$1 HERRRET =+ —H A - #ERKRD
is payable on acceptance of the grant of an option. The BRERASINRBEARENS
exercise period of the options granted is determinable by JC o FTIRLBEARE 2 1T BARR AR
the Directors, which commences after the date of offer EEET YRELHBEHBRERA
with a certain vesting period and ends in any event not 6 WEETHEE  REMEM
later than 10 years from the respective date when the BATREBANEHBRE S
share options are granted, subject to the provisions for A BB T EW - AR
early termination thereof. IRRIAR I Z ST AR ©

The total number of shares which may be allotted and RITERBHETEFR L ZE
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under RERRRERF AT AL 3 R BT 2 IR 48
the New Scheme is an amount equivalent to 10% of the - HHBHEEREBE-_T——
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of the 2011 FREAFASRITEHAZAR
AGM. RIE BTN Z 10% °
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32.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

[b] New Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares to be allotted and issued
upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the New Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Group must not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the relevant class of shares of
the Company in issue from time to time.

The number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any 12-month period is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. Options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive Directors in
excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital and with
an aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million must be
approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders. The
New Scheme does not provide for any minimum period
for holding of options or any performance target before

exercise of options.

32. R AEFTE
(b) ¥#istE (&)

RITERBEIE RAKE 2 E
o] B At 8 AR AT BIFTI th R AR
T8 2 P A R AR BT TIE 2 B R
i T B3 R BT 2 i & e &
B AT BEBTREHTLZ
AR RIB BRI 2 30% °

o ) e i 5 = I B R S R
BAZBREMY 2 RNEE -
TEARERRQRIRRE LB ER -
TMSBEAR QR R EMEEE %
TN Z1% - BT EERESK
B IERNITES 2 BRE MBS
AARBARZ0.1% Rk REEE
5,000,000 70 + BB L ER
ARPEHEALE - FET BV ERTE
A ERE 2 &R R T
FREARER AR IREIZ -
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32.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the 2002
Scheme and the New Scheme during the year:

32. R AEFTE

PR A TR A AEBUE R
BRERARE EREZHER -

F7 - RIB =TT = EE B RATH A
Z AT T -

2016 2015
—E-XREF —ZT-hF

Number of Number of

shares shares

Weighted issuable Weighted issuable

average under the average under the

exercise options exercise options

price RIBERAE price BIE B R

il ] A#ITZ IHEF S AETZ

TEE ROBE 1T1EE R BE

HK$ per share ’000 HK$ per share '000

BT (8R) TR AT (8R) T

At 1 April RMA—H 0.18 5,850 0.28 59,310
Cancelled during the year ~ FAEEH — — 0.48 (10,000)
Exercised during the year ~ FR7T{E 0.20 *(3,138) 0.16 #(24,750)
Lapsed during the year FREH 0.16 (12) 0.36 (18,710)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 0.17 2,700 0.18 5,850

Total exercise monies of HK$165,000 was received for the
exercise of 400,000 share options of the Company under the
2002 Scheme.

Total exercise monies of HK$451,575 was received for the
exercise of 2,738,000 share options of the Company under the
New Scheme.

# Total exercise monies of HK$268,000 was received for the
exercise of 2,400,000 share options of the Company under the
2002 Scheme.

Total exercise monies of HK$3,686,250 was received for the
exercise of 22,350,000 share options of the Company under the
New Scheme.
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2,400,000 17 28 7~ 7) B8 f% 4 B U B 48
1T{E FXIE 268,000 7B 7T °

1B ¥ Er &l - 17 £5£22,350,00015
ANATBRED WEAETTERIE
3,686,250/8 7T °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R IR AR M T

31 March 2016 —F—~NF=H=+—H

32.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The exercise prices, exercise periods and number of shares
issuable in respect of the share options outstanding under

32. R AEFTE

R|EHR - BIRIE—FFT —F518
Kt 8l 2 MARITEBRERRE 21T

the 2002 Scheme and the New Scheme as at the end of the BB TEHR LA T2 RMNE R
reporting period are as follows: N
2016
—E-RE
Number of shares
issuable under the options
’000 Exercise price*
REBRETRITZ HKS$ per share
REEE TEE Exercise period
Fh& B (BR) TEEARR
2,700 0.165 5 December 2013 to 4 December 2023
—E-=f+-_AREHAE-ZE-_=%+=-HAMNH
2,700
2015
—T—hF

Number of shares
issuable under the options

'000 Exercise price*

RIRIE AR A 31T 2 HK$ per share
R1DEE IEE™ Exercise period
& BT (BR) FTIEEARR
200 0.410 3 April 2008 to 2 April 2018
TNEFOA=AZ="— \GWOA=H
200 0.417 3 June 2008 to 2 June 2018
ENEFENA=ZHE_E—N\FA=H
50 0.162 27 March 2013 to 26 March 2023
TE =T B et T | ]
5,400 0.165 5 December 2013 to 4 December 2023
—FE—=%+_AAHE-_ZT_=F+=-AWNMH

5,850

& The exercise prices of the share options are subject to E%Hﬁ%ﬁ@iﬁTﬂTﬁ{ Hﬁﬁﬁlﬂﬁﬁﬁ

adjustments in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar
changes in the Company'’s share capital.

No share options were granted for the years ended 31 March
2016 and 2015.

%o

E/\\@i— = /\E'E&
=t+—H ii&ﬂzﬁ&ﬁﬁ!ﬁﬂxﬁé o
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32.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the year ended 31 March 2014 was estimated as at the
date of grant, with reference to the valuation performed by
Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of
professionally qualified valuers, using a binomial option pricing

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32. R AEFTE

REE-ZE-—NF=RA=+—HIF
ERHABSEE 2 BREZ A FE
EN2ERUAEREXRMGEEMPE
HEBRARBET ZAEREMR ZBEN
HiEEERANE G A BETAE

model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which WE T MZEBERE 2 BB ISR IE
o NRINESZEXFTHBAER

the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to
the model used:

Share options

granted on

5 December 2013

RZE—=%F

+—-—AAH

B2 EhkiE

Dividend yield (%) A% B2 (%) 0.0%
Expected volatility (%) TEHIR 08 (%) 100.57%
Historical volatility (%) JFE S B2 08 (%) 100.57%
Risk-free interest rate (%) ER R FIE (%) 2.2%
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) IEFEHIRE (Bx (B%)) 0.163

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

For equity-settled share-based payments with parties other than
employees, the Group has rebutted the presumption that the
fair values of the services received can be estimated reliably
as in the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of the services
cannot be reliably measured. Accordingly, the Group measured
the services received from these parties, with reference to the
fair values of the share options granted using the binomial
option pricing model, at the date these parties rendered related
services to the Group.
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32.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 32. R AEFTE

No other feature of the share options granted was incorporated
into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period,
aggregated outstanding share options that enable the grantees
to subscribe for up to 2,700,000 (2015: 5,850,000) shares in
the Company under the 2002 Scheme and the New Scheme.

the Company had

The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 2,700,000 (2015: 5,850,000) additional ordinary shares
of the Company and additional share capital of HK$270,000
(2015: HK$585,000) and share premium of HK$175,500 (2015:
HK$479,500).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had aggregate outstanding share options that enable
the grantees to subscribe for up to and 2,700,000 shares
under the New Scheme, the underlying shares in respect of
which represented approximately 0.34%, respectively, of the
Company'’s shares in issue as at that date.

33.DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil).

33.

ArE R EERE AP ER
R EMEE -

RBEEAR BT _F5r 8 &
FTEIT - RARZMARITEBARELR
BEARATRER %2700, oooﬂx

— A % : 5,850,0000%) &N
%ﬁoﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%2&$%%’
PEHTFEZEHMRITEERESS
2 % 172,700,000/ (= F — A &F :
5,850,000 f%) AN RIRE SN @AY - BB
SNRE A 270,000 0 (ZFE — R F -
585,000 7T) & AR 174 (B 175,500 74
7T (ZZE—F% : 479,500/87T) °

RZEVBEREREREB - BB
T8l RAR 2 mARITEBREREEE
A AR R &% 2,700,000 A& A% 1D
HAp k2 BERNMIERRRINER
BTN R0.34% o

IR 2

EECTERREBE_Z
== Etifﬁ%&ﬂﬂ%
—HRF £E) e

REMBREZERAERAR
—REEH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e AR R M

31 March 2016 —F—~NF=H=+—H

34.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 34. A QTR RN KR K&
AND RESERVE OF THE COMPANY &

2016 2015
—E-RF —E—A1F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Properties, plant and equipment YE - BE KRB 90 —
Interests in subsidiaries R B AT 2R 2,370 —
Amounts due from subsidiaries R ENGIE ¢ 52,836 —
Total non-current assets ERBEELTE 55,296 —
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and ANFIE T2k
other receivables E b e FRIA 322 208
Cash and cash equivalents Re RS EY 18,401 5
Total current assets REEEHAT 18,723 213
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals LA A 50 % AT BRIA 629 1,768
Total current liabilities REEEATE 629 1,768
NET CURRENT REBEE (A FE
ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 18,094 (1,555)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEHABERRBEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 73,390 (1,555)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FRBERS
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEAHH B A 71 RIE 2,754 1,838
Total non-current liabilities FREBEEEEE 2,754 1,838
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) BE /(8@ FE& 70,636 (3,393)
EQUITY/(DEFICIT IN ASSETS) xS (BEBM)
Share capital &N 109,536 79,610
Reserves @ (38,900) (83,003)
TOTAL EQUITY/ xS (BEBL) 45
(DEFICIT IN ASSETS) 70,636 (3,393)

The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the Board on 27 June 2016 and were signed on its

MBEREREN_T—R"FA-TL
FRESSHERRENE Y H

behalf by: NTATREREFSEE -
Xu Zhigang Han Jun

#ER BE

Chairman Director

B EF
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34.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  34. A2 T B #E AR R 3k B &
AND RESERVE OF THE COMPANY & @)

(continued)

Movements of the Company’s reserve RARREE 22 E
Share Share
premium option Accumulated
account reserve losses Total
B4 B E-Si
RER (E3c] B st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TET TET TET

At 31 March 2014 and RN=ZT—NF

at 1 April 2014 ZA=t+—-H8kK
“Z-mFENA—H 372,468 10,041 (445,483) (62,974)
Loss and total FABEREZER
comprehensive expense T 42%
for the year — — (24,095) (24,095)
Equity-settled share option AR A 7 BERL
arrangements L — 268 — 268

Transfer of share option R R e
reserve on the forfeited BEERERE

share options — (7,336) 7,336 —
Exercise of share options ~ {T{E85A 42 3,841 (2,362) — 1,479
Placement of new shares ~ ER&E#TAx {0 2,550 — — 2,550
Expenses on issue of BRI 2 ER
new shares (231) — — (231)
At 31 March 2015 RZZE—hF=H
=+-8 378,628 611 (462,042) (83,003)
Loss and total FABEREZER
comprehensive expense X488
for the year — — (32,412) (32,412)
Equity-settled share option A#EzS#EE 2 BBAL
arrangements REZHE — 106 — 106
Exercise of share option ~ {T{EHE %1 704 (401) — 303
Placement of new Shares ~ EL&#T% {7 77,466 — — 77,466
Expenses on issue of BTk O ER
new Shares (1,360) — — (1,360)
At 1 April 2016 RZZE—RF
mA—A 455,438 316 (494,654) (38,900)

RERRZERBR AR
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34.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Movements of the Company’s reserve
(continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

Under the Companies Law (2001 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account of the Company is
distributable to its shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, in the opinion of the
Directors, the Company had no reserves available for
distribution to shareholders.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised, as
further explained in the accounting policy for share-based
payment transactions in note 6 to the financial statements.
The amount will be transferred to the share premium
account when the related options are exercised, and will
be transferred to accumulated losses should the related
options expire or be forfeited.

35.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

Mastery Jewellery Co. Limited
During the year ended 31 March 2016, Lighting Storm Holdings

Limited has entered into an agreement to acquire 100% equity

interest in Mastery Jewellery Co. Limited at a total consideration

of approximately HK$6,900,000. The acquisition has been

completed on 5 October 2015. The aggregate consideration of
approximately HK$6,900,000 has been settled by cash.

Acquisition-related costs of approximately of HK$196,000 have

been recognised as expenses in the year and included in the

administrative expenses.
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35.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. WIRHEB 2 F m
(continued)
.. == = =
Mastery Jewellery Co. Limited (continued) ZEKERRAT @)
The net assets acquired in the transaction and the goodwill RRXSGMBRIBEEFEREPEELZ
arising therefrom, are as follows: NN
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
Uk B B FE R
ATEE
HK$'000
FHET
Net assets acquired: Wig 2 BEFE
Property, plant and equipment M - BEKRE 1,637
Inventories FE 1,002
Trade and other receivables JE U BR TR N E A W R IE 1,318
Cash and cash equivalents ReFREEEY 994
Due to related companies FERT AR R 7] 2 508 (833)
Other payables E e ERIE (132)
Net assets acquired by the Group AEEWIE 2 BEFE 3,986
Goodwill arising on acquisition W EE 2 mE 2,914
Total consideration BRAE 6,900
Satisfied by: BUATHRAZA
Cash Be 6,900
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WHEES 2 RS MAHEE
Consideration paid in cash LREE 2 RE (6,900)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B e RReEEY 994
(5,906)
None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is expected to WHEMEE 2 MERTSRTIBE B
be deductible for tax purposes. &R °
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Mastery Jewellery Co. WEEEKREARAFELECHER
Limited is attributable to the network of its design, research and ERERE R - 3 LB ERELS -

development and wholesale of jewellery.

REMZERERAT
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35.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the
Group

Had the acquisition of Mastery Jewellery Co. Limited been
effected at 1 April 2015, the Group’s revenue for the year ended
31 March 2016 would have been HK$10,533,000 and the
consolidated loss for the year would have been HK$32,893,000.
The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only and
is not necessarily an indication of the revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been achieved
had the acquisition been completed at 5 October 2015, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.

Wing Tai Industrial Holdings Limited

During the year ended 31 March 2016, Prosten E-Business
Investment Limited has entered into an agreement to acquire
100% equity interest in Wing Tai Industrial Holdings Limited
at a total consideration of approximately HK$800,000. The
acquisition has been completed on 20 January 2016. The
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$800,000 has
been settled by cash.

Acquisition-related costs of approximately of HK$4,000 have
been recognised as expenses in the year and included in the
administrative expenses.
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Wing Tai Industrial
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. Y B R B 2 7] ()

(continued)

Wing Tai Industrial Holdings Limited Wing Tai Industrial
(continued) Holdings Limited (&)
The net assets acquired in the transaction and the goodwill MRXSAWBEBzEEFEREEZRE
arising therefrom, are as follows: 2
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
RUBRRERZ
NEEE
HK$'000
FHT

Net assets acquired: FrliE  EEFE -
Cash and cash equivalents HekReFEY 23
Other payables E M ERTFRIE (47)
Tax payables FESBIIR (170)
Net liabilities acquired by the Group REEWEBEFE (194)
Goodwill arising on acquisition (note 20) WL 2 28 (3E20) 994
Total consideration BRA(E 800
Satisfied by: ATFIA R
Cash BRe 800
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WEEEE RS RAFRE

Consideration paid in cash LIRS RE (800)

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B ReERREEEY 23

(777)

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is expected to ZWEEEMELECBERERITI S
be deductible for tax purposes. TR IR ©

RERRZERBR AR
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35.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the
Group (continued)

Had the acquisition of Wing Tai Industrial Holdings Limited
been effected at 1 April 2015, the Group’s revenue for the year
ended 31 March 2016 would have been HK$10,050,000 and the
consolidated loss for the year would have been HK$31,367,000.
The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only and
is not necessarily an indication of the revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been achieved
had the acquisition been completed at 20 January 2016, nor is
it intended to be a projection of future results.

36.DE-CONSOLIDATION OF

SUBSIDIARIES

As mentioned in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements,
De-Consolidated Subsidiaries have been de-consolidated from
the consolidated financial statements of the Group as from
1 January 2016.
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36.DE-CONSOLIDATION OF
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Details of the aggregate net liabilities of the above-mentioned

36.BUEMI B A Rl&Z:E AR

(&)

B AR BEFERBE B

subsidiaries are set out below: Fan
Immediate before
de-consolidation on
1 January 2016
R-ZE—XRFE—H—H
EERUHAR S ABRA
(Unaudited)
(REgeHEZ)
HK$'000
FAT
Net liabilities acquired: Wi aEFE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB RERE 1,158
Investment property AW 4,832
Available-for-sale financial assets AHESREE 399
Amounts due from the Group PRI AR & B 5RIR 12,580
Goodwill Sl —
Trade receivables FEUBR R 2,270
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TENFIE © 51 & REMEWIE 1,790
Due from a Director Bl —REEHIE 33
Cash and cash equivalents ReFReEEY 1,773
Trade payables FETBRIR (6,672)
Amounts due to the Group FE A& B FRIE (49,967)
Other payables and accruals L Ath < 5RIE I FE AT 5RIE (6,076)
Tax payables FES IR (3,218)
Interest-bearing borrowing, secured BB EEE (502)
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIBEE (302)
(41,902)
Net Liabilities BEFE
Effect of written off of investment in de-consolidation WEHREUBER S ABRMIE A A
subsidiaries and amounts due from the ZIE R EWE SRS AR
de-consolidated subsidiaries WEBAR 2 RIEZ & 52 544
Translation reserves b 5 R (87)
Net loss on de-consolidation UM B R aléR & AR
of subsidiaries 2 ERFEE 10,555

Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
arising from de-consolidation of subsidiaries

On 24 June 2016, the Board resolved that the Group no longer
had the power to govern the De-Consolidated Subsidiaries,
and the control over the De-Consolidated Subsidiaries was lost.
Detail were set up in Group’s announcement date 24 June 2016.

HECEMBARGAEARELZ
ReKIBSEBEYR D FEIN =778

R-TE—RNFEANA-_+NA - EFg
R AEBTHEARENAEIY
RAEARKBAR  WREHEUEL
BAERWB AR ZIEHIE - BHAFES
ENAEEBHRA_T—NFENA
T+ AER °
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37.COMMITMENTS 37. &I
(a) Operating lease arrangements (a) REHELH
The Group leases its office properties under operating AEERBECEHERHEER
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated WMAEYE - MEHELERS
for terms ranging from one to three years (2015: one to BARM—ZE=F4/%F(ZZF—1
three years). F:—F=F)o
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total REpEHR - NEBIRBETIH
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable HEEMHEEN A THEEE 2
operating leases falling due as follows: RRFEHEENFERENT
Group
AEH
2016 2015
—E-REF —E-hE
HK$°000 HK$'000
F85 Fit
Land and buildings: T GEF -
Within one year —FR 3,457 543
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFERF
(BREREMEF) 11,592 26
15,049 569
(b) Capital commitments (b) BEAEIE
The Group has no significant capital commitment at the REBRHRERRL|EMEKR
end of the reporting period (2015: Nil). BRAE (ZZE—HF: &)
38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS . EHEEALRS
Details of compensation of key management personnel of ERASEXTEERAB ZHMFIS
the Group are included in note 12 to the financial statements RS BRERNE 12 ZERML T
which do not constitute connected transactions or continuing BRCBIEIR ERAIZ BER S
connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules. BRAER S o
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39.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

9. BERE S 2T A

CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REEER  SEERTAZRAMED
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: T
Financial assets TREE
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Loans and receivables: BEXRRERFRE :
Trade receivables (note 22) FEUERR (BI5E22) 26,862 4,974
Financial assets included FTAET & R E A FE I
in deposits and other FIEZEREE
receivables (note 23) (FF5E23) 3,727 2,899
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEED
(note 24) (Fff7E24) 28,761 1,778
59,350 9,651
Available-for-sale AHHESREE :
Financial assets:
Available-for-sale AN ESREE
financial assets (note 19) (PfF5E19) 22,179 832
22,179 832
81,529 10,483

RERRZERBR AR
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39.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 39

CATEGORY (continued)

Financial liabilities

ERE S ZEMT A

(&)

THEE

2016 2015
—B-AE —T—IfF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FiET
Financial liabilities R A TR Z
at amortised cost: SRIEME
Trade payables (note 26) FETBRR (MF7E26) 2,703 9,713
Financial liabilities included ST AE A R FRIE &
in other payables FEETHEIE Z &7t
and accruals (note 27) afE (Msk27) 8,336 9,361
Financial liabilities included ST AR
in due to an ultimate AR A A
holding company (note 29) ZeRaE (HFE29) 142 —
Due to non-executive FERIIENITE S 2 58
Directors (note 25) (FfffzE25) 5,425 2,000
Interest-bearing borrowing TEEE
(note 28) (FM¥5x28) — %125
Due to de-consolidated subsidiaries FERTEUEERE AR B AR
(note 29) 25/ (MI7E29) 15,300 —
31,906 22,199

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that except as set out below, the
fair values of all financial assets and liabilities of the Group are
reasonably approximate to their carrying values largely due to
the short term maturities of these instruments. For fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets, please refer to note 19 to the
financial statements. As at 31 March 2016, the fair values of
financial instruments for which fair value are disclosed below
which are classified based on their nature, characteristics and
risks and the level of fair value hierarchy of these instruments.
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40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

BN
o
]S
g
i H
i

BN

B
[
o

i

Zip
A

Fair value at Fair value at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015 Fair value
RZB-RE RZZ—H%F hierarchy ~ Valuation technique(s) Significant
Financial assets =R=t-H2 ZR=+—-Hz ALEE and key inputs unobservable inputs
tREE AVEE NREE] EFEY REXMREERAE EXTABEBAE
Available-for-sale 21,760 — Level 2 Market based approach Prices used are
financial assets F-E Key inputs: derived from a multiple
(Note 19) price of each of price to earnings,
AHNESRARE similar companies prices to revenues and
(HFE19) or interest in companies price to book

The fair value of non-current portion of deposits has been

calculation by discounting the expected future cash flows using

the risk-free rate (key input).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 (2015: Nil) and no

transfers into or out of Level 3 (2015: Nil).

msEERBAE -
FARHBRALZ
ERRRAR R

FriEMMERRE SR
ABX - BRHRE
AT

A2 IERBEN 2 A FEETIRA
ERRMNE (E2HAE) FREBEHR
FKRERETE -

FA  F-—BEHE_EBHEILRA
BEAVEEZFE(ZZT—RF:

') TMRABARELE=E (=F

—FRF ) o
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41.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The major financial instruments of the Group included trade
receivables, certain deposits and other receivables, cash and
bank deposits, trade payables, certain other payables and
accruals and an interest-bearing borrowing. The Group have
various other financial assets and liabilities such as amounts
due to Directors and/or available-for-sale financial assets.

The principal risk management objective of the Group is to
manage the risks associated to the unpredictability of financial
markets in a prudent manner. They are measured by degree
of such risks and their effects to the financial performance and
financial positions of the Group.

It is, and has been, throughout the year under review, the
Group’s policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be
undertaken. The management seeks to minimise the adverse
effects of such risks to the Group by closely monitoring
individual exposure.

The main risks arising from the financial instruments are credit
risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. The
management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below. No changes were
made in the risk management objectives, policies, processes
and the methods used to measure the risks during each of the
years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015.
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41.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is mainly arising from risk of default of
counterparties. The Group expenses to credit risk mainly
from their financial assets with a maximum exposure
equal to their carrying amounts, except for the Group’s
cash balances of approximately HK$400,000 (2015:
HK$58,000).

The objective of the Group is to manage the adverse effect
bring about by the risk of potential default or delay in
payments. It is the Group’s policy that they trade only with
recognised and creditworthy counterparties and they are
subject to credit verification procedures. The management
monitors such exposures on an ongoing basis mainly by
control over credit limits and terms by reference to their
history of repayment and default.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements. Save as
those disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements,
there are no financial assets that are past due but not
impaired. The financial assets included thereof relate
to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of non-availability of funds to meet
all contractual financial commitments as they fall due.
The objective of the Group is through prudent treasury
policy to monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits with a
contingency plan for funding, to ensure the Group has
sufficient funding for operation needs. The management
manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

L. TBEREEEER

(a)

(b)

(&)

EERE
FEERBIEREHFHENZ
R o AEEZEERBAZE
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2EaEERRAZSCREE
ZEEE AR A eEH
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41.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT . PBEBEEEER
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) BUR (m)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) RBIESEE @
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at RIEHR - AEBERBEELOK
the end of the reporting period based on the contractual WHENRGTEZSRaE 2 5 H
undiscounted payments is as follows: BT
Total Total
undiscounted undiscounted
cash flows cash flows
on demand on demand
or less than or less than
12 months Total 12 months Total
RERD carrying RERK carrying
PR+=MEA amount PR+ 1A A amount
XK ITER REE | IRHAFTER EEE
ReRERE #Em | Ben=gE ot
2016 2016 2015 2015
ZE-RE ZE-RE 17 “T-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT THET THET
Trade payables (Note 26) RSN (Fi3E26) 2,703 2,703 9,713 9,713
Financial liabilities included in ATARMERNFIER
other payables and accruals 7B eREE
(Note 27) (fx27) 8,336 8,336 9,361 9,361
Due to non-executive I TES R
Directors (Note 25) (K3t 25) 5,425 5,425 2,000 2,000
Due to an ultimate Jidpp=eS e NE
holding company (Note 29) (FizE29) 142 142 - =
Interest-bearing borrowing EEE (Mizkos)
(Note 28) — — 1,125 1,125
Due to de-consolidated [EREUEL A AR
subsidiaries (Note 29) MEARZFE
(F#3E29) 15,300 15,300 — -
31,906 31,906 22,199 22,199
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41.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to its floating rate bank deposits. The Group’s
income and operating cash flows are largely independent

of changes in market interest rates.

Objective of the Group is to manage its interest cost
by a combination of fixed and variable rate financial
instruments. Currently, there is no interest rate hedging
policy. However, to monitor the interest rate exposures, the
management will consider hedging in case of significant

interest rate exposure.

At 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Group’s exposure to
interest rate risk is minimal as the Group does not have
any significant interest bearing financial assets/liabilities

and therefore no sensitivity analysis is presented.

(d) Foreign currency risk

The Group’s trading transactions, monetary assets and
liabilities are mainly denominated in RMB and Hong Kong
dollars. As the foreign currency risks generated from the
sales and cost of sales can be set off with each other, the
impact of foreign exchange exposure to the Group was
not material. The Group does not use derivative financial
instruments to protect against the volatility associated with
foreign currency transactions and other financial assets
and liabilities created in the ordinary course of business.
The majorities of the Group’s operating assets are located

in Mainland China and are denominated in RMB.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group has no significant direct exposure to foreign
currencies as most of the commercial transaction,
assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency as a
functional currency of each entry of the Company.
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42.CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of capital management are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
management may make adjustments on the dividend policy
or capital structure policy in light of changes in conditions and
the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. The Group is
not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2016 and
2015.

43.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at 31 March
2016 (2015: Nil).

44.EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING

PERIOD

(a) The Subscription

On 31 May 2016, the Company and the subscriber
entered into the subscription agreement pursuant to which
the subscriber agreed to subscribe for, and the Company
agreed to issue, the convertible note in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$35 million. The Subscription is
conditional upon satisfaction of the conditions precedent.

(b) The Acquisition

On 31 May 2016, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, the vendor and the Guarantor entered into the
acquisition agreement, pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to purchase and the Vendor
conditionally agreed to sell the sale shares of a group
of target Companies, at the aggregate consideration of
HK$14,378,000.
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44.EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continued)

(c)

(d)

Proposed Change of Company Name

The Board of the Company proposes to change the
existing English name of the Company from “PROSTEN
TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED” to “PROSTEN
HEALTH HOLDINGS LIMITED” and to adopt the dual
foreign name in Chinese “RERBEITERERAF" to
replace the existing Chinese name “FERHIZI AR A
A]” which was adopted for identification purposes only
subject to certain conditions, including the passing of a
special resolution by the Shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting to approve the proposed change of
company’s name. The stock short name of the Company
will be changed subsequently.

Details of such events after the reporting period as set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 31 May, 2016

Resolution on De-consolidated
subsidiaries

On 24 June 2016, the Company announces that despite
repeated verbal and written requests (including legal
letters), the Directors has been unable to access the
complete sets of book and records together with the
supporting documents of De-Consolidated Subsidiaries
for the period from 1 January 2016 to 31 March 2016.
This was mainly due to the lack of cooperation by the
management of the De-Consolidated Subsidiaries.
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44.EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING

L4, BEHIREIE )

PERIOD (continued)

(d)

(e)

Resolution on De-consolidated
subsidiaries (continued)

On 24 June 2016, the Directors considered that the Group
was unable to govern the De- Consolidated Subsidiaries,
and the control over the De-Consolidated Subsidiaries was
lost. Therefore, from 1 January 2016 onwards, the Group
had de-consolidated the De- Consolidated Subsidiaries
from its financial statements for the financial year ended
31 March 2016. Details of the above will be included in the
Company’s annual results announcement for the financial
year ended 31 March 2016.

The Directors has been taking all reasonable steps and
has been using its best endeavors to protect interest of
the Group and try to resolve the above matters.

Provision of loan

On 22 April 2016, SZ Enterprise Union Finance Limited
and independent third party entered in a loan agreement,
which SZ Enterprise Union Finance Limited has agreed
to lend to the independent third party a term loan in the
principal amount of HK$ 6,000,000. Term loan is six
months period from the drawdown date with 10% interest
rate per annum. For details, please refer to the Company'’s
announcement dated 22 April 2016.

45. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board on 27 June 2016.
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